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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®RES

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year under review was a year full of challenges which
were triggered by the outbreak of financial crises in the
United States. The unstable global economic conditions,
the chaos of the world's major financial systems and the
pessimistic market sentiments emerged after October
2008 had altogether, to a certain extent, adversely
affected the performance and results of the Group. A
series of operational and financial measures have been
effectively adopted by the Group’s management aiming to
counter such adverse impacts, | am pleased to report to
shareholders that the results so far have been encouraging,
given all the turbulences the Group had experienced.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group had
managed to increase its revenue to HK$350,146,000,
representing a 170% growth from last year (2008:
HK$129,582,000) and successfully brought down loss
attributable to equity holders to HK$4,907,000, which was
reduced by 62% compared to the previous year (2008:
HK$12,854,000). Basic loss per share was HK0.40 cent
(2008: HK1.62 cents).

During the year, the Group has expanded the business
scope of its supply and procurement division into
commodities of fuel, metal minerals and recycled metal
materials. Very encouraging results have been achieved by
management in successfully building up a new business
network of sellers and buyers which contributed to the
significant increase in trade volume transacted by the
division. The revenue of the supply and procurement
division was HK$348,127,000 for the year, increased
by 169% over last year (2008: HK$129,627,000), and
also mainly accounted for the significant increase in the
Group's overall revenue. Operating profit of the division
for the year was HK$9,718,000. The newly established
provision of finance division contributed an operating
profit of HK$1,571,000 to the Group's results for the year.
The Group’s management believes the division has good
earnings potential and will provide a stable stream of
income to the Group. The loan portfolio held by the Group
amounted to HK$10,500,000 at year end. The Group's
securities investment division recorded a small loss of
HK$1,103,000 for the year primarily resulting from investing
in listed equity securities. At year end, the Group's securities
portfolio comprised Hong Kong listed equity securities and
equity-linked notes aggregated to HK$83,398,000.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHRES

PROSPECTS

There are signs that global major economies and financial

systems have stabilized and effects of the financial tsunami
are fading out. In addition, economic data recently released
by the government of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") also give support to the common expectation that
growth momentum of the PRC economy will sustain. Given
these positive indicators, the management is optimistic
about the future prospects of the Group's businesses and
has looked into several investment opportunities which
are expected to create substantial long-term value to
shareholders. In June and July 2009, the Group entered
into two framework agreements to acquire effectively 100%
equity interests in a group of companies which are engaged
in the design, manufacturing, sales and leasing of heavy
infrastructure construction equipment and the provision
of construction services and personnel to the high-speed
elevated railways, urban subways, and cargo and container
markets in the PRC. Given the initiatives of the government
of the PRC in investing in the infrastructure sector, the
management considers that the proposed acquisition
will be in the interests of the Group to diversify into PRC
infrastructure related businesses to broaden the scope of
the Group's business, and to enjoy the benefits of future
growth in the PRC infrastructure sector. The proposed
transactions are subject to signing of formal agreements
and further announcements relating to progress of the
proposed transactions will be made in due course.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our

shareholders, investors, bankers, business associates and
customers for their continuous support to the Group, and
to my fellow directors and all staff members for their hard
work and contributions for the past year.

Suen Cho Hung, Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of

supply and procurement, provision of finance and securities
investment. During the year, the Group has expanded the
business scope of its supply and procurement business
into commodities of fuel, metal minerals and recycled
metal materials. The volume of trade transacted by this
business division increased significantly and bringing the
division’s revenue up by 169% to HK$348,127,000 (2008:
HK$129,627,000). Most of the customers of this business
division are in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
and management expects the division will continue to
perform well in light of the continuous growth of the PRC
economy. Despite such revenue growth, the division’s
operating profit declined by 16% to HK$9,718,000 (2008:
HK$11,598,000), mainly resulting from considerable
change in sales mix, keen competition and downturn of
global economy which lowered profit margin. During the
year, the Group has commenced its financing business
which management believes possesses good earnings
potential. Interest income of HK$1,681,000 was earned
by the division and a loan portfolio of HK$10,500,000
was held by the Group at year end. The Group's securities
investment division recorded a small loss of HK$1,103,000
for the year primarily as a result of investing in listed equity
securities. The market value of the Group's securities
portfolio, comprising Hong Kong listed equity securities and
equity-linked notes, aggregated to HK$83,398,000 at year
end.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

At 31 March 2009, the Group had current assets of
HK$273,967,000 (2008: HK$290,823,000) and liquid
assets comprising cash and short-term securities investment
of HK$201,448,000 (2008: HK$191,625,000). The
Group's current ratio, calculated based on current assets of
HK$273,967,000 over current liabilities of HK$47,236,000,
was at a strong ratio of 5.80 at year end (2008: 6.52).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE[EsmED M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (continued)

The Company issued approximately 326 million new

shares during the year as a result of placing of new
shares, conversion of convertible notes issued and
exercise of share options granted. At year end, equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounting
to HK$228,022,000,
when compared to the last balance sheet date (2008:

HK$176,563,000).

representing an increase of 29%

At 31 March 2009,
comprised only convertible notes of HK$30,563,000
(2008: HK$69,074,000). In May 2009, convertibles notes
with aggregate principal amount of HK$11,000,000 were

the Group’s total indebtedness

converted into shares of the Company, the remaining
convertible notes with aggregate principal amount of
HK$21,500,000 will be due for repayment in November
2009, if not previously converted. The convertible notes
were interest-free and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Group's gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of total
indebtedness divided by total indebtedness and total equity,
was at a low level of 129 at year end (2008: 28%).

With the amount of liquid assets on hand as well as credit
facilities available, management is of the view that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet its
ongoing operational requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY MANAGEMENT

The monetary assets and liabilities and business

transactions of the Group are mainly carried and conducted
in Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars and US dollars. The
Group maintains a prudent strategy in its foreign currency
risk management, to a large extent, foreign exchange risks
are minimized via balancing the foreign currency monetary
assets versus the corresponding currency liabilities, and
foreign currency revenues versus the corresponding
currency expenditures. In light of the above, it is considered
that the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks is not
significant and no hedging measure has been undertaken
by the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 March 2009, bank deposits of HK$37,626,000
(2008: HK$48,256,000) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

At 31 March 2009, the Group had no significant contingent
liability.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

At 31 March 2009, the Group had no significant capital
commitment.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 March 2009, the Group had a total of 20 employees
including directors. Total staff costs for the year, including

directors’ remuneration but excluding equity settled share-
based payment expenses, was HK$4,110,000 (2008:
HK$5,010,000). The equity settled share-based payment
expense of HK$2,931,000 (2008: nil) represented fair
values of share options granted to employees, directors
and consultants of the Group and were not associated with
any cash outlays. Remuneration packages for employees
and directors are structured by reference to market terms
and individual performance and experience. Benefits plans
maintained by the Group include mandatory provident
fund scheme, medical insurance, share option scheme and
discretionary bonuses.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul, Chairman

Aged 48, Mr. Suen joined the Company as an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company in November
2007 and is also a director of various members of the
Group. Mr. Suen holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of South Australia. Mr. Suen has
extensive experience in managing metal, mineral and raw
material, energy and property business ventures as well as
strategic planning and corporate management of business
enterprises in Hong Kong and the People's Republic of
China (the "PRC"). Mr. Suen is a substantial shareholder of
the Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests
and short positions of shareholders discloseable under the
SFO" in the Report of the Directors. Mr. Suen is also an
executive director and the Chairman of China Yunnan Tin
Minerals Group Company Limited and an executive director
of BEP International Holdings Limited, both are listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles, J.P, Deputy Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

Aged 59, Mr. Lo joined the Company as an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company in December
2000 and has been re-designated as the Deputy
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
in November 2007. Mr. Lo is also a director of various
members of the Group. Mr. Lo is a Certified Practising
Accountant of the CPA Australia and an associate member
of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia. Mr. Lo has
over 33 years of professional and business experience in
financial and investment services in Australia, Hong Kong
and other Asian countries. Mr. Lo is an independent non-
executive director of Cash Financial Services Group Limited,
Hembly International Holdings Limited and Tak Sing Alliance
Holdings Limited, all being listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lo is also an executive director of Sun Innovation
Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Sue Ka Lok, Member of the Remuneration Committee
Aged 44, Mr. Sue joined the Company as an Executive

Director in November 2007 and is also a director of
various members of the Group. Mr. Sue graduated from
the University of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of
Economics degree and holds a Master of Science in
Finance degree from the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Sue is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and a member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. Mr. Sue has extensive experience in
corporate management, finance, accounting and company
secretarial practice. Mr. Sue is also an executive director and
the Chief Executive Officer of China Yunnan Tin Minerals
Group Company Limited and an executive director of BEP
International Holdings Limited, both are listed companies in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong Danny F.

Aged 47, Mr. Wong joined the Company as an Executive
Director in June 2009 and is also a director of various
members of the Group. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor's degree
in economics from the Central University of Finance and
Economics. He has extensive international business network
and has over 15 years experience of project investment in
the PRC as well as securities investment in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Mr. Wong is also an executive director and the
Chairman of National Investments Fund Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Rongsheng

Aged 60, Mr. Li joined the Company as an Executive
Director in June 2009. Mr. Li is a senior economist with
33 years of experience in the production and management
of mechanical equipments and extensive experience in
infrastructure-related business and project management in
the PRC.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Chairman of the Audit Committee and

member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 70, Mr. Wong joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director in August 2001. Mr. Wong is a
Practising Certified Public Accountant and a fellow member
of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wong has more than 44 years of
financial experience. Mr. Wong is the principal of W. Wong
& Co., CPA. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive
director of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited, China
Power New Energy Development Company Limited and
Takson Holdings Limited, all being listed companies in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Weng Yixiang, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 50, Mr. Weng joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director in October 2007. Mr. Weng
graduated from China Central Radio and TV University
specializing in law and is also qualified as a senior
economist in the PRC. Mr. Weng has over 20 years of
experience in banking, investment and finance and had
served as senior executive in government authorities and
financial institutions in the PRC. Mr. Weng is the general
manager of an investment management and consulting
company in the PRC.

Mr. Lu Xinsheng, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 42, Mr. Lu joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director in October 2007. Mr. Lu graduated
from Sichuan University with a Bachelor of Science degree
specializing in environmental chemistry. Mr. Lu has over 20
years of experience in trading business and has held senior
positions in trading and logistics companies in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Xiong Wei, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 35, Mr. Xiong joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director in October 2007. Mr. Xiong
graduated from Chongging Workers and Staff Members
College (EEMBIAE) specializing in economics
management. Mr. Xiong has over 15 years of experience of
advertising and public communication and has held senior
positions in advertising and media companies in the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Yuk Yee, Company Secretary
Aged 41, joined the Company as Company Secretary

in November 2008. She holds a Master of Business
Law degree from Monash University in Australia and is
an associate member of both the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Chan has over 10 years
of experience in company secretarial practice.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HRE

The directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment

holdings and securities investment. Details of the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2009 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that

date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 35 to 131.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2009 (2008: nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and minority

interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 132. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment

and investment properties of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

PR B e 2 ik AR 2 ‘
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e MBmEK -
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FE)
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BERIBBRRESMETHNE132E - il
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ME BERRBREEME

FR - ARAEAEBYE - BWEMKE
RIEEEMEZEDNFBD IR ERE T
WMERMIFFEISR16

BRA - BRERTRERERS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital,
share options and convertible notes during the year are set
out in notes 32, 33 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

FARARAZBEA BRI BRRE
BZEHFBORENEGRE M HRKRM T
32 33K30-°
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HE

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders

of the Company at the annual general meeting held on
28 August 2008 and the subsequent approval of the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong, the name of the Company has
been changed from “Xin Corporation Limited” to “Poly
Development Holdings Limited” and “(REIZERITARHE
[R2R]" has been adopted as the Chinese name of the
Company for identification only.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under

the Company’s bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and

of the Group during the year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

BERARERE
BERARATR_ZEZNFNA-_TN\BE
TZBRFBFRE LERRBBZ KRR
mE - REREAREQAEMERES
NEIFMEZIE  ARFZAREABEE
B [Xin Corporation Limited | 8 2% [ Poly
Development Holdings Limited | = 37 £% 4X
[MREIEERITERER QA IEAEHRBZRA
BRZARNRNBRXETE o

BLRBER
ARRZARHAAUKERE-NN—FQ
AANEABEEBER AT  BAR
AIBARLEPIBER R TRERR

BE BOIHLEARA LHRES
ARBBEEMBEBRRMENFARBEE -
BEHHERRBER ETHES -

f# 8
RRABRAEEFRAZFHEZLDFBD 5
ENFEEMBERRM AIANGARRED
KA -

B Pa3=Ri

At 31 March 2009, the Company had no reserve available
for distribution and/or distribution in specie as computed
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$244,424,000 may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k

R-ETNAFZAZ+—H  REEHEE
—NN—FRFLEFE - A AR A E
BEDkEk XEMD IR ZHEE - ANAFA
2 B0 (B BR B 8r244,424,0005 7T AT LA
ERALAR ZERDIK



POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group's five

largest customers accounted for approximately 97% of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 33%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
77% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 33%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the
year.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Mr. Sue Ka Lok

Mr. Wong Danny F. (appointed on 16 June 2009)

Mr. Li Rongsheng (appointed on 17 June 2009)

Mr. Yu Wai Man (resigned on 5 November 2008)

Mr. Zhang Zhidong (resigned on 1 April 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

Mr. Weng Yixiang

Mr. Lu Xinsheng

Mr. Xiong Wei

PR B e 2 ik AR 2 ‘
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HE

DIRECTORS (continued)
In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company's bye-

laws, Mr. Wong Danny F. and Mr. Li Rongsheng will hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
"AGM") and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company's bye-laws,
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles, Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Mr. Weng
Yixiang will retire by rotation at the AGM. Mr. Lo Ming Chi,
Charles, Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Mr. Weng Yixiang, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Weng Yixiang,
Mr. Lu Xinsheng and Mr. Xiong Wei, and as at the date of
this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM

has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements, no director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HRE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of

the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules"), were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company:

Capacity and

Name of director nature of interest

SO RESNEE

Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul
B EE

Interest held by
controlled corporation

MEHEBTE 2

PR B e 2 ik AR 2

ESRKRO - HERORES 2ES

KixR=

RZEZNF=ZA=+—H KXRAE=SE
MITBAHEN A AR HNEBEEZE (EER
Er REE R ([7E5 B ERA]) HXV
#) 2Bt - MR RESFTHEBERIEE
7 M B IGRGI B 352R BB RN AR B IF
BEZECMAZERLRR  HREEB
BMERXZABRAR (B ESF LS
MAN(T ETARBD FAE LT RRESETT
BHR SRR ([RLEFRI]) Z 8 E
A& AR A R B X P 2 fE ek MoK B U0
T

RARBRBZHFR :

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of Company’s issued

shares held share capital

Fr 4% RAQRE BT

R & E RA A B DL

358,966,714 25.72%
(note 1)
(Krat1)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES EZEZ=RR#H  -MHERORESF 2R

(continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

M#e (&

RAERBDBREZFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of the

Capacity and underlying Company’s issued

Name of director nature of interest shares held share capital

HARAREBHITRA

EENE S REEME FrisEE R0 & B 2B A DL

Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul Directly beneficially owned 10,000,000 0.72%
S EREalER (note 2)
(Ktiz2)

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles Directly beneficially owned 3,000,000 0.21%
SRR S A BEEExHA (note 3)
(H17t3)

Mr. Sue Ka Lok Directly beneficially owned 10,000,000 0.72%
BRRLESEE BERE=REA (note 4)
(K1at4)

Long positions in convertible notes of the Company:

RARBAIRRRBZHRE

Number of Percentage of the

Capacity and underlying Company’s issued

Name of director nature of interest shares held share capital

A RABEET

EENE Bt REEME FrisEBERH BB A 2B DL

Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest held by 78,467,152 5.62%
R R & controlled corporation (note 5)
MIEFDEERE 2 (H17ts)
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Global Wealthy Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Excelsior Kingdom Limited which in
turn is wholly owned by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul.

2. This represents the interest of Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul
in 10,000,000 underlying shares issuable under the share
options granted by the Company to him on 30 April 2008
under the share option scheme of the Company adopted
by the shareholders of the Company on 30 December
2002 (“Share Option Scheme”). The consideration paid
by Mr. Suen on acceptance of the share options granted
was HK$1.00. The exercise price of the share options is
HK$0.188 per share and the exercise period is between 30
April 2008 and 29 April 2010.

3. This represents the interest of Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles
in 3,000,000 underlying shares issuable under the share
options granted by the Company to him on 30 April 2008
under the Share Option Scheme. The consideration paid
by Mr. Lo on acceptance of the share options granted
was HK$1.00. The exercise price of the share options is
HK$0.188 per share and the exercise period is between 30
April 2008 and 29 April 2010.

4. This represents the interest of Mr. Sue Ka Lok in
10,000,000 underlying shares issuable under the share
options granted by the Company to him on 30 April 2008
under the Share Option Scheme. The consideration paid
by Mr. Sue on acceptance of the share options granted
was HK$1.00. The exercise price of the share options is
HK$0.188 per share and the exercise period is between 30
April 2008 and 29 April 2010.

5. This represents the interest of Global Wealthy Limited
in 78,467,152 underlying shares issuable under the
convertible notes issued by the Company and held by it in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$21,500,000 which
can be converted into 78,467,152 shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.274 per share (adjusted in accordance with
the terms of the convertible notes on 6 March 2009).

BRI B TR A A @

EENKRD - HERORESF 2ES

Nx= (&)

Afaz -

It 55 B% 15 B Global Wealthy Limited$%
& » Global Wealthy LimitedJ5Excelsior
Kingdom Limitedz 2 &K & 2 7 » i
Excelsior Kingdom Limited 8] fr #8 8 3t %5
EREBEA -

BHRALAEER _ZTTNFNA=1+AH
BEARNGBREBEARRBRER-ZTZT_F
TZA=ZTHRRMZ AN RERETE
([FERE AT &) BT 2 MR AE M 78 7 5
172.10,000,0000% #8 B8 f% 10 < # z &
%Eﬁé%mﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁ%ESEWHELOO?%
T o IR 21T (E R ER0.188E T -
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfg?)\ﬁﬂﬂi‘?’a;%:
—TFMA=+NH-
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BEARARBBBEREST X T2 BRE
i 78 T ¥ 17 23,000,000 8% 18 B8 J 15 =~ #&
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1.007%8 7T - BER%#E 2 171E (B B3 h%0.188
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AE-ZT—TFWMA=-t+hH-

EHRREEEN T NA\FOA=1H
BARBRBERE SR T 2 B
ifl 78 T % 17 2.10,000,000/% 18 iz 0 =
ea o BOTAENEMNBRER D XNRE
1.00/8 7T - BB 2 1T E R 50188
A MIIERAR-_FTTENFOA=+
RE-_Z-—ZFMA_-t+hH-

$§Global Wealthy Limited iR #7422 7] 7 8%
TREMPBAEARS LT 221,500,000
TCZ AR R M /A T 8417,278,467,152
PRARRA R (D 2z - BRI IR Z IR A]
B EFR0274B T (ER 2T h
F=HXH $E%F‘Jiﬁﬂ;<m%)fz 1638 T LA
FHEE) H R 578,467,152 B 1D
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

In addition to the above, as at 31 March 2009, a director
has a non-beneficial personal equity interest in a subsidiary

held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose
of complying with the minimum company membership
requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests

and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above and in the “Share Option Scheme”
disclosure in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of share option scheme of the Company are set out

in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HRE

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

(S

REEZRBAERHETHREZRR
EHERKRRE

As at 31 March 2009, the following interests of more HRZ-ZTZ
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Capacity and
nature of interest

S kEREE

A% AR50 LA FHEZS -
e

Number of
shares held
it
RHEE

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

issued
share capital

EARE BT
BRABNED L

ZNFEZA=1T—"H8 REEHFX
HEGRPIEIZ6HRREARRAFE 2R
BRMicsk  WTRERFEAARRRDHET

Number of
underlying
shares held
FristaE
15 & B

Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul
Bt s

Excelsior Kingdom Limited

Global Wealthy Limited

Interest held by
controlled corporation

REFABRA 2 #x

Directly beneficially
owned

BEREalA

Interest held by
controlled corporation

mESEE A 2 #

Directly beneficially
owned

HERBEakEA

358,966,714
(note 1)
(Bfat1)

358,966,714
(note 1)
(BriE1)

358,966,714
(note 1)
(Bfet1)

25.72%

25.72%

25.72%

78,467,152
(note 2)
(Bfat2)

10,000,000
(note 3)
(K1i3)

78,467,152
(note 2)
(B1at2)

78,467,152
(note 2)
(Htzt2)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Global Wealthy Limited, which is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Excelsior Kingdom Limited
which in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Suen Cho Hung,
Paul. Accordingly, Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul and Excelsior
Kingdom Limited were deemed to be interested in
358,966,714 shares under the SFO.

2. This represents the interest of Global Wealthy Limited
in 78,467,152 underlying shares issuable under the
convertible notes issued by the Company and held by it in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$21,500,000 which
can be converted into 78,467,152 shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.274 per share (adjusted in accordance with
the terms of the convertible notes on 6 March 2009).

3. This represents the interest of Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul
in 10,000,000 underlying shares issuable under the share
options granted by the Company to him on 30 April 2008
under the share option scheme of the Company adopted
by the shareholders of the Company on 30 December
2002. The consideration paid by Mr. Suen on acceptance
of the share options granted was HK$1.00. The exercise
price of the share options is HK$0.188 per share and the
exercise period is between 30 April 2008 and 29 April
2010.

The interests of Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul, Excelsior
Kingdom Limited and Global Wealthy Limited in
358,966,714 shares and 78,467,152 underlying shares of
the Company referred in notes 1 and 2 above related to
the same parcel of shares and underlying shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of other relevant interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
March 2009 as required pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HRE

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their

performance, experience and prevailing market rate.
Other employee benefits included provident fund
scheme, insurance and medical cover, subsidised training
programme, discretionary bonuses as well as share option
scheme.

The determination of emoluments of the directors of the
Company had taken into consideration of their respective
responsibilities and contribution to the Company and by
reference to market benchmark.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the

Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant post balance sheet events of the

Group are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EZ=E®HE

AUDITORS

Messrs. Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the Company
with effect from 30 March 2009 and Messrs. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng were appointed as auditors of the Company

on 8 May 2009 to fill the casual vacancy so arising. There
have been no other changes of auditors of the Company in
the past three years.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Suen Cho Hung, Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k

B BLEm

ZKEHAMEBHAER _ZTETNLF=F
=+ HBHEARR A B - A ED
EHMER _ZTETNFRANBEZER
AR BV RZBURD - AR ZEER o R ARS8
E=FUEHREMEBENEE -

ARRBREREBRFRBFARAE LIE2 A
BREFEAMEHEM SRR AZEE 2

REE -

RXEFS

TE
B

FB —ETAFELA+LEH



POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2

(S

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 ERHRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices at all times. The Board believes that good
corporate governance helps the Company to safeguard
the interests of its shareholders and to enhance the
performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board has adopted the principles and complied with

all the applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code") as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
for the year ended 31 March 2009, except for a deviation
relating to code provision A.4.1 with considered reason as
explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors of the Company (the “Directors”). Having made
specific enquiry with the Directors, all of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control

of the Company. The Board reviews and approves the
objectives, strategies, direction and policies of the Group,
the annual budget, annual and interim results, the
management structure of the Company as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has
delegated the responsibility of day-to-day operations of the

Group to the management of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine

Directors, five of which are Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi,
Charles (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Sue Ka Lok, Mr. Wong Danny F. and Mr. Li Rongsheng;
and four are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai,
and Mr. Xiong Wei. The Company has received from each

Mr. Weng Yixiang, Mr. Lu Xinsheng

of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules. Biographical details of the Directors are
set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 9 to 12 of this
annual report.

During the year, four full board meetings were held and the
attendance of each director is set out as follows:

Number of
Executive Directors attendance
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 4/4

(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sue Ka Lok 4/4
Mr. Wong Danny F. (appointed on 16 June 2009) 0/4
Mr. Li Rongsheng (appointed on 17 June 2009) 0/4
Mr. Yu Wai Man (resigned on 5 November 2008) 1/4
Mr. Zhang Zhidong (resigned on 1 April 2009) 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 4/4
Mr. Weng Yixiang 4/4
Mr. Lu Xinsheng 4/4
Mr. Xiong Wei 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group adopts a dual leadership structure in which the

role of the Chairman is separated from that of the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ"). The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing all Board functions, while the executive directors
and senior management are under the leadership of the
CEO to oversee the day-to-day operations of the Group and
implementing the strategies and policies approved by the
Board.

The position of the Chairman of the Board is currently held
by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul and the position of CEO is
currently held by Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors

should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Deviation

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term but shall retire from
office by rotation at least once every three years as referred
to in bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws which provides
that at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors of the Company for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 July

2005 with specific terms of reference. As at the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises six
members, including two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Sue Ka Lok, and four Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr.
Weng Yixiang, Mr. Lu Xinsheng and Mr. Xiong Wei.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration; and

2. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the year, two meetings were held and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of

Members attendance
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 2/2

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Sue Ka Lok 0/2

(appointed as a member of the

Remuneration Committee

on 5 November 2008)
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 2/2
Mr. Weng Yixiang 2/2
Mr. Lu Xinsheng 2/2
Mr. Xiong Wei 2/2
Mr. Yu Wai Man 1/2

(resigned as a member of the
Remuneration Committee
on 5 November 2008)

The following is a summary of work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the year:

1. determined the remuneration of the Directors; and

2. reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Company did not have a nomination

committee. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship. They identify
individuals suitably qualified in terms of skill, knowledge
and experience to become members of the Board, taking
into account of the then existing composition of the Board
in terms of skill, knowledge and experience and make

recommendation to the Board for approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 March 2009, remuneration payable

to the Company's auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng,
for the provision of audit services was HK$700,000. During
the year, HK$80,000 was paid as remuneration to HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng for the provision of non-audit
related services to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors,

namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Weng Yixiang, Mr. Lu Xinsheng and Mr.
Xiong Wei. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of those
auditors;

2. to discuss with the external auditors before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit;

3. to review the interim and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

4. to discuss problems and reservations arising from the

review of interim results and audit of final results,
and any matters the external auditors may wish to
discuss; and

5. to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices.

During the year, two audit committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of

Members attendance

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 2/2
(Chairman of the Audit Committee)

Mr. Weng Yixiang 2/2

Mr. Lu Xinsheng 2/2

Mr. Xiong Wei 2/2

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year:

1. reviewed with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, discussed the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008 and recommended the same to the Board for
approval; and

2. reviewed with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, discussed the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 September 2008 and recommended the same to
the Board for approval.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear

and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2009.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 32 to 34 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibilities for maintaining

an adequate system of internal control to safeguard the
Group's assets and shareholders’ interests. An internal
control system, including a defined management structure
with limits of authority, is designed to help achieving
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized
use, maintain proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use and for
publication. The internal control system is set up to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
mis-statement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of
the Group's objectives.

During the year, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT X #Z & EhsReE

B # & & % # 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

31/F Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Poly Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set
out on pages 35 to 131, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

ZEEm Y EE

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT X #Z & EhsReE

OPINION

=R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the loss and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #&EWFHE R
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g FET FHET
Revenue WA 7 350,146 129,582
Cost of sales FHERK A (335,976) (113,747)
Gross profit EA 14,170 15,835
Net losses on investments at BEBEmEARBEYK
fair value through profit or loss ZIREZ EEERE 9 (1,441) (3,600)
Other income and gains H b A R = 7 4,154 8,638
Selling and distribution costs HE R HEAXZ (245) (136)
Administrative expenses T (12,464) (18,922)
Impairment of goodwill EERA 18 - (6,478)
Other expenses HifAx 9 (1,940) (897)
Finance costs A& A 8 (3,015) (3,926)
Equity settled share-based LARE 5 48 E A AR 19
payment expenses AN pdEa 9,10 (2,931) -
Loss before taxation BrFi AT B 18 9 (3,712) (9,486)
Taxation IR 12 (1,773) (655)
Loss for the year RFEEE (5,485) (10,141)
Attributable to: LATS AT FE(S -
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEA 13 (4,907) (12,854)
Minority interests DR R S (578) 2,713
(5,485) (10,141)
Loss per share attributable to RATERFFEA
equity holders of the Company FE1S TR E 1R 14
Basic and diluted BERREE
(HK cent(s) per share) (FRREM) (0.40) (1.62)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

GS’%@%%@&%@&%

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 March 2009 R=_ZFTNEFE=A=+—H

meaBEERER

2009 2008
—EEZAF ZETNEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W -~ BB N 15 1,302 26
Investment properties REMZHE 16 - -
Prepaid land lease payments TER AR E FIE 17 - -
Goodwill EES 18 - -
Total non-current assets EREEEMRTR 1,302 26
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 - 1,234
Accounts and bills receivable JE U AR 3k K% e U 2= 4% 21 20,001 36,468
Prepayments, deposits and TENHIE - B2 Kk
other receivables H fib e W BR 3K 22 4,392 4,036
Loans receivable W E K 23 10,500 8,000
Amounts due from related companies — JEUXRFE N AIFIE 24 - 1,204
Investments at fair value through BEiRERIRA R BET
profit or loss FRZIE 25 83,398 5,340
Pledged bank deposits EEHFIRITER 26 37,626 48,256
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSEED 26 118,050 186,285
Total current assets B & EAREE 273,967 290,823
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and bills payable JEAHBR 3R N BN R 4R 27 12,967 6,884
Other payables and accruals E b JET BRI S ERTRIE 28 3,288 1,854
Amount due to a minority shareholder  FEff —fu D EARRFKIE 29 - 34,255
Tax payable fES TR 1A 418 1,611
Convertible notes AJ RN 2R 30 30,563 -
Total current liabilities mE) R B 47,236 44,604
Net current assets mBEEFAR 226,731 246,219
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBERS 228,033 246,245
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BB A A (‘0)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #8EEE8EF%
As at 31 March 2009 R-_ZEZTAF=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EENF —EENEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
by FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes AR =R 30 - 69,074
Total non-current liabilities FEMBBEERE - 69,074
Net assets EEFR 228,033 177,171
Capital and reserves BARK B
Share capital [N 32 13,957 10,699
Reserves 1 34(a) 214,065 165,864
Equity attributable to equity ARARERFEA
holders of the Company bR 228,022 176,563
Minority interests DE R RER 11 608
Total equity R AR 228,033 177,171

The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 131  HF35HEFI13NHEZEEMBEHRERZZ
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of ZTNFE+tA++tHBEEESHELFEET
Directors on 17 July 2009 and are signed on its behalf by: WA TNINEETRREE

Suen Cho Hung, Paul Lo Ming Chi, Charles
B ZEAE
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
*E I fERITIEARE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIMGEREBEBZEMKHRE 2 & -
financial statements.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

X\ @’%?&%#}Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ/&ﬂ

BALANCE SHEET &EA&EX

As at 31 March 2009 R=_ZFTNEFE=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EETRF —ETN\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FHET FAETT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRG 15 830 18
Investments in subsidiaries KRB R Z2"E 19 - —
Total non-current assets ERBDEERT 830 18
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERHIE - B2k
other receivables b FE Y BR K 22 3,293 272
Amounts due from subsidiaries J7E S B JB8 A B 3k I 19 114,943 56,440
Amount due from a related company — EU—MFERBEQRIRIE 24 - 1,095
Investments at fair value through BBEREALE
profit or loss BIIRZIRE 25 46,271 5,340
Cash and cash equivalents B MIReEED 26 92,229 181,976
Total current assets MENEEARTE 256,736 245,123
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to a subsidiary JEf~— e B B A R 7B 19 18,305 15,827
Other payables and accruals HMET AR R EFTIE 28 643 1,254
Convertible notes Al AR IR 30 30,563 -
Total current liabilities BB ERE 49,511 17,081
Net current assets MENVEEFE 207,225 228,042
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 208,055 228,060
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible notes Al A RR = 30 - 69,074
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERT - 69,074
Net assets BEEFE 208,055 158,986
Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital (&N 32 13,957 10,699
Reserves & 34(b) 194,098 148,287
Total equity R AR 208,055 158,986

Suen Cho Hung, Paul

B
Chairman
FE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #efEm@ sk
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE—ZTZNF=-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARREEARE
Convertible Share
Share Share Contributed notes equity Translation option Accumulated Minority
capital ~ premium  surplus  reserve  reservve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
TEREE ¥
Bx  ROEE EHER RBERE ERLRG BREGRE ZEER Mt RRER 3t
Notes ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HKS000  HKF000  HKFO00  HKH000  HKF000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
M FEx TiEn TEn  TEn Tén  TEx TEn  FEn TiEn TiEn
(note 30)
(H3£30)
At 1 April 2007 R® tEmA-H 4747 46,235 3,085 6,035 2,409 305 (24751) 38,065 688 38,753
Exchange difference asing on 5185057
translation of overseas EEVENER
operations - - - - 173 - - 773 64 837
Total income and expense for ~ E&RNERED
the year recognised directly — ZAERE
in equity W BE - - - - 773 - - 773 64 837
Profit/ (loss) for the year TERET/ (BR) - - - - - - (12854)  (12,854) 2713 (10,141)
Total income and expense FERNR
for the year 4w - - - - 773 - (12854)  (12,081) 2777 (9,304)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR) 36 - - - - (1,656) - - (1,656) - (1,656)
Dividend declared to a M- SRR
minority shareholder FRRE - - - - - - - - (2857)  (2857)
Issue of convertble notes EMRERE 30 - - - 3165 - - - 3165 - 3165
Direct transaction costs AREE
attributable to the equity o)
component of convertible [ElRE%
notes REFA - - - (156) - - - (156) - (156)
Conversion of convertible notes AT ARZ % 5911 139,130 - (25217) - - - 119824 - 119,824
Share options exercised duing £ R{TEZ
the year Bhie 4 1,206 - - - (305) - 942 - 94
At 31 March 2008 and R-ZE\F=A=1-H
1 April 2008 RZZZ/\EMA-A 10699 186,571 3,085 12,287 1526 - (37605 176563 608 177171
Exchange difference arising B G55
on translation of EECER
overseas operations 8 - - - - (97) - - (97) (19) (116)
Recognition of equity settled FNERLES
share-based payment BIARAZ A
expenses pdi:5 1 - - - - - 2,931 - 2,931 - 2,931
Total income and expense for ~ ERRNERED
the year recognised directly — ZAFE
in equity Wxas - - - - @) 291 - 2,834 (19) 2815
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - - - (4907)  (4907) (578)  (5485)
Total income and expense FERNR
for the year 2% - - - - (97) 2,931 (4907)  (2073) (597)  (2,670)
Conversion of convertible notes  BHATAKZE 30 1,696 47096 - (729) - - - 41497 - 41497
Issue of shares G 32() 1500 9,750 - - - - - 11,250 - 11,250
Transaction costs attributable ~ {7MR (A 1S
to issue of shares RHHA 3203) - (382) - - - - - (382) - (382)
Share options exercised duing A1 Z
the year Bk 32(b) 62 1389 - - - (284) - 1,167 - 1,167
At 31 March 2009 RZZBEnE
=ZB=t-H 13,957 244,424 3,085 4992 1,429 2,647 (42512) 228,022 11 228,033

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIMIEABREE KKKz —3hMm -
financial statements.
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

g @’%?&%?’%Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ/&ﬁl

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #HEeEHEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

2009 2008
“ERNE —TENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Logs TER FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBRENE
Loss before taxation BRIAIE R (3.712) (9,486)
Adjustments for: NTIE=S L
Finance costs BERA 8 3,015 3,926
Bank interest income RITHLS A 7 (3,483) (2,574)
Interest income from provision of finance REREZFSBA 7 (1,681) -
Interest income on loans receivable R ER 2 FEBA 7 - (693)
Interest income on amount due from a el — = R B
related company R ZFBHA 7 - (30)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Hip MR R
other receivable BERAREEE 9 2,040 -
Impairment of goodwill HERE 18 - 6,478
Unrealised losses on investment in listed KRE FHRAESZ
equity securities AELER 9 1,109 869
Unrealised gain on investment in REBRZBHEREZ &
equity-linked notes FH W 9 (1,303) -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREE
equipment ZIE 9 445 156
Depreciation of investment properties BREMEINE 9 - 1,541
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEK
equipment B ZER 9 13 -
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments BREN LA ERE 9 - 520
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 S 7 - (4,562)
Equity settled share-based payment EREET
expenses IR H Sz 9,10 2,931 -
Operating cash flows before movements EEELEDAIZ
in working capital REHERE (626) (3,855)
Decrease in inventories FEZRDY 1,234 736
Decrease in accounts and bills receivable MR R ERER 2R 16,467 39,401
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FERFIE - BE REAM
other receivables JE W BR 3R 2 38 (2,396) (3,045)
Increase in loans receivable FEUE TR 4 (2,500) (8,000)
Increase in investments at fair value through BRBEREAAEE
profit or loss 5l BRI E 2 38 (77,864) (6,209)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and e RR R BT R %
bills payable 23Em/ Cid) 6,083 (12,304)
Increase in other payables and accruals Hofth A BR AR S I AT RRIE 2 S5 1,434 1,892
Decrease in amount due to a minority e — Rz DB R
shareholder HIBZHEL (34,255) (15,872)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from FEW BB A R FRIA
related companies ZRL /() 1,204 (1,222)
Exchange realignment BE 3, 3 B (113) 1,552
Cash used in operations REEBHALRS (91,332) (6,926)
Interest on loans receivable received BERERZF B 1,681 693
Overseas taxes paid [EAREA A (2,872) (2,923)
Net cash outflow from operating activities REEBRRERNEFE (92,523) (9,156)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #H=Z_—-F

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED ‘ (\
AR RAd | (O

%Aiﬁﬁuwgﬁﬁ
TAE=A=1+—BuFE

2009 2008
“EBNE “TENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B st THER FET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Interest received BUF B 3,483 2,604
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ EEW¥E - R M&HE 15 (1,736) (15)
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ*%% B &
plant and equipment B PT1E A 2 -
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBRARMBHRETFE 36 - 22,205
Increase in time deposit R ZIEM (48,860) -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits ~ EAEIRRITEHZHD, (3Eh0) 26 10,630 (48,256)
Exchange realignment RIS - (110)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ~ REFE 2R ETRHFHE (36,481) (23,572)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRENE
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes ?é‘ﬁEHQHXmTFﬁWEﬁK 30 - 200,000
Proceeds from issue of shares, BT AT FIE
net of share issue expenses paid kR B M At %’”‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁ 32(a) 10,868 -
Proceeds from exercise of share options T BB RAE P15 TR 32 (b) 1,167 942
Decrease in trust receipt loans ERBBEERZRD - (529)
Repayment of bank loans BERITER - (3,500)
Repayment of a loan from a minority R —f D BRR R
shareholder ZER - (644)
Expenses for issue of convertible notes BOTABRBRERRAY - (2,500)
Decrease in an amount due to a FE I — iz DB R FRIE
minority shareholder 2R - (4,780)
Interest paid ERFE (29) (538)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 5 B - 424
Net cash inflow from financing activities METECEHERATE 12,006 188,875
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and Iﬁé&fﬁéfﬁmz
cash equivalents m) I nFEE (116,998) 156,147
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E%ﬂzfﬁu%&
of year Re%gEy 185,145 28,225
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ [EXRE &) ¥ 2 - F5H (97) 773
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FHAZRERELSEEY 68,050 185,145
Analysis of balances of cash and BeRBEeEENES
cash equivalents Pkl
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHE R 26 68,050 8,099
Time deposits with original maturity of less ERERIBETE=@EAZ
than three months when acquired FERRER - 177,046
68,050 185,145

The accompany notes from an integral part of these

financial statements.

B B P 5 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B J 2 e AR 2 vl

A M ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

1.

—REH

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except
otherwise indicated.

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holdings and securities investment. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

RARARD—FRKRBREEGFMK Y 2
BRAR  HROREBEBER I
BRAR ([BERZA]) £ e AR A
2 = it #% = & {7 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

meaMBmRAEIT (BT 2% -
ALATRARBZNEEEE - KxE
HAEIN BERACEAERED
ZTRE(THET) -

ARNBIZEEEK LB EIERNES
KE HITEBWERQR 2 BN
$19°

RAFI RSB BB BREE
Bl ([&EBMHREED D

42

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) have applied, for the first time, the
following amendments and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"), which are
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2008.
The new HKFRSs adopted by the Group in the financial
statements are set out as follows:
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position for the
current or prior accounting periods have been prepared
and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment
has been required.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.

R KRBT BB HREE
Bl ([EBMHHRELER ) (&)

The Group has not early adopted the following
new HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The Group is in the process of assessing the
potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet
in a position to determine whether these new HKFRSs
will have a significant impact on how its results of
operations and financial position are prepared and
presented. These new HKFRSs may result in changes
in the future as to how the results and financial
position are prepared and presented.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs!

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements?
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Borrowing Costs®
Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements*
HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation®

HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

Eligible Hedged Items*

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards*

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations®

Business Combinations*

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments®

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 &
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Operating Segments®
Embedded Derivatives®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

AREBWEEFRAUTSERME
WARERZ R BB FRELER
ANEBIEFF ST BB RE
HAZEBEZE HEHARABENSE
M BAM B MELER B EHLEHE
BRUMBRAZEREEZ2ERER
FEWEMIT BBV BREEL K
SO MAREENMHERN Z RE R

BEMBREEM(BE) ERPHRSEMIWE

BEMBREEM(BT) —TRNFRRMKEEER
I

BEESRANG (BBT) HBRRLZIP

B ERI235 (44

(&) RERR
BRSHENTY (BB GANBUMBRE
EASEANERIE  WERZEBIERR
(B37) EREEEZED
BRHERN (B7])  AERYMER
EAYBREENR BRFMERR BRE RN

(@37
BEUBREENRR  NHELT KREHLE
BEeEIR () RBELAREIAL

BRUHREEIN (BF]) BEAMRER
BEMBRERAH xham

(&f3T)

BRUHREENTSR (B]) eRIAREZHRS
BEMBRE RS LENIP
BE(ERMBEERE  BAAETR
25g)-2RREE

S5HERI39% (B7)

Bk (BRHBAERE  BPRIHEP

REg)-BR13
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h POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

BRAHM RGBT EBUBREE
Bl ([&EBHMHHREERD ) (&)

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2.
(“HKFRSs") (continued)
HK(IFRIC) = Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?®
HK(IFRIC) = Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation’
HK(IFRIC) = Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owner*
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS
5, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009, 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as
appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

20009.

5 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June
20009.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008.
8 Effective for transfer on or after 1 July 2009.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July
2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control,
which will be accounted for as equity transactions.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new or revised standards and
interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3%

FEEHE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

BETEZRIARAOAEBEFE(RT
SIEFTBRARE) I - RE M B HRE
RIBE S RAERmEL -

BRAMBRRREEEGHMOGR
MR B RS BRI - o
RAMBRRTBRABRFAES LT
981 T 7 7 28 466 51 P 49 5 &0 3 PR
BEK -

2
7

FEREEE
HAEVBBRREBEARRRARA (K
MEARDZEHNER (BEMSER
MR ZER) WMBHRER - AR
AIEERE —EERBNYHEREER
B AR ERNXGERARE
BB 7B 4% il -

FRARBILENHMB AR MRS -
HUEBEMAHEXEERELERAE
HIE(ER) IR e Wi A e

A& E - B2t E R R R R
RIFLTE UK EHERAFTE
RO EBRREARNEEEMNKE Q7
FrAE—2 -

SEARRNABERS & A
kRAXEREAKRERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

31

FESFHE (&)

46

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at the
date of the original business combination and the
minority's share of changes in equity since the date
of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority
in excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised
at their fair values at the acquisition date, except
for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”, which are recognised and measured at fair
value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k

FAEREEE(E)
RENBRRIFEENMNDBART
EREDSEANEEMEOERE D M
fR - PEBBRRRFEENE D BREZ
FHaNREGEH AR EERD
B REZ A O B AR RO R AN &
B LBERNERBHNNERF
BRENDBRRERNBBEBEARS
R ELINE  ELBRBERT
AEHARNDEERAIAEMMEER
ERERRID o

EBE U

WHE R HIRBE AT E - WHE A
Th 38 AN 6% [ 3 S 3R 4 W R T O 92 6
e THEE BEEXAENRER
BOTNBRATARRZRBEPEN AL E
BREE SNMEBEHFRANENE
BEAGTE - NEBAMBRELERS
SR8 6 6f ] R IR AR IBE T7 19
ABAEE AELRKREE K
WIEAMN AR EETNER  ER
BERBVBRE LS FHEHE R
ERIEGEXTRIERDEE | ERA
FEHEZIERBEE (HHEKE)
T nn BEBREEXNNERLE -

WEEANREBNHERAR/EELNF
BEAFTE  EBEHRASRA
SENEHERABMNEE  BERK
RBENAIAFERDNESE NE
flr 1 - i 7 &= [ 0 48 U BB O /Y AT AR
BE BEMIARBENRAFERE
MBEEBAMKRA - Al ZH S
B R -



POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #H=Z_—-F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Business combinations (continued)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business or a
jointly controlled entity (which is accounted for using
proportionate consolidation) for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
business or jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business or a jointly controlled entity is presented
separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Goodwill (continued)

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-
generating unit or a jointly controlled entity, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property and recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set out
below.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has
two subcategories, including financial assets held for
trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition:

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

« such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

« the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

« it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivates, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recongised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including accounts and bills receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, loans
receivable, amounts due from related companies,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and
amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset's
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FESFHE (&)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

« default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
accounts and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 30 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are initially classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts and bills
payable, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to a minority shareholder, and convertible notes are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of
the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the convertible notes into
equity, is included in equity (convertible notes equity
reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Convertible notes (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes equity reserve until the
conversion option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve
will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve
will be released to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by
the Group and not designated as at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration is recognised in
profit or loss.
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(continued)

FESFHE (&)

56

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises cash
in hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at
the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to other participants

For share options granted to other participants in
exchange for services, they are measured at the fair
value of the services received. The fair value of the
services are recognised as expenses immediately
unless the service qualify for recognition as assets.

Corresponding adjustments have been made to equity
(share option reserve) as in the case of share options
granted to employees.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k

RERBAEEEY

AR RERMS  He kR
SEVEREFRBAS LEMER - K
NMATBEREMAE MBER S MBLE
B % 8y PrAHE A B R0 B 2 8 B 808
(—RPNBAR=ZEARIH) 25 E
MBEHKRE  REARBHEEY
BRASERSEE —HH2RTE
% o

UGB X 25
Kigm i EXARD NS
BT REBNERE

W RBRETARSRE 22BN
EEDBNRA R EEm RTINS R
ANABESHRIEHASEESERAER
Yo W (RERRHE R %) & 1B 4
FEZ AN o

REBREGER  AEEEFTEREL
RRFEOBREIEE NG &
RIREMBAANTE(WMEB) HRERTE
R WHBREFEEFLBERE -

ERBRRETES  FATERRER
WHERNBESERARMDEE -
EBRENFEBEBRBORNKI =D
BADARITEE - 5 A0 12 8 A AR (7 1 A i
ROBESERERAEE -

BRTHM2EE 2 BERE

BT EMSEE ABREURS 2 8B R
RAERRE 2 AR EBEFE - T
FERmAIRBZ AR BEEMFERR
FIS - BRIEIRTS B ERILERREE ©

ARm g REFHREAEERLE
P v 18 — Bz ME e R B (8 R
) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2

e R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and
are discounted to present value where the effect is
material.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination are initially measured at fair value at the
date of acquisition. At subsequent balance sheet date,
such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised
less cumulative amortisation (if appropriate).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FESFHE (&)

58

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Sale of securities investments are recognised on a
trade date basis.

Rental income is recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income and expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FESHE (&)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and are accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associate, and interest in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the entity intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

31

FESFHE (F)

60

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FESHE (&)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging on operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

Employee benefits

(@) The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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3. FESEBEX(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(®)

As required by the law, the relevant subsidiary
in Singapore makes contributions to the state
pension scheme, the Central Provident Fund
("CPF"). CPF is a defined contribution scheme.
CPF contributions are recognised as compensation
expenses in the same period as the employment
that give rise to the contribution.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

@

(®)

©

(d)

©)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) had

joint control over the Group;
the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued) FEESFTEBE (&)
Related parties (continued) BREE AL (E)
(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly ) ZATAEZIENE()IBEFFIE
controlled or significantly influenced by or for Z AT A A BTHE ) - LR R
which significant voting power in such entity BEITHRERNTE N 2ERE X%
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual ATEESREREZERBCE
referred to in (d) or (e); or RIEERE - 5
(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for (8) ZATTIRREBE IR EBRA
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of EEEHMEALTCEECREER
any entity that is a related party of the Group. MRz BEREERET S -
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

RS A R A

64

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4. BAESTHEOE R E (&)

(a)

(b)

©

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets
have suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Estimate of fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

»  the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

» the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

C)

(b)

(©
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK

66

MANAGEMENT 5. EMITAREANRARERE
(a) Categories of financial instruments () &M ITEHER
Group NE
Financial assets THEE
2009 2008
ZEENE “EENE
Financial Finandial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
loansand ~ Heldfor  profitor Loans and Held for profit or
receivables trading loss Total  receivebles frading loss Total
el el
RALEE BOrERE
ERR S g3k kv

Biks  RfEE cREE At BUER  BERE  SRAE ait
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00D  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO000  HKS000
tén TR TEm TR TAm  TEL  TAn  TEI

Accounts and bill receiveble B RIENZE 20,001 - - 20,001 36,468 - - 36,468
Other receivables Efb Rl 3,949 - - 3,949 m - - 0
Loans receivable EUER 10,500 - - 10,500 8,000 - - 8,000
Amounts due from related  EWEEAT
companies B - - - - 1,204 - - 1,204
Investments at fair value FREREDA
through profit or oss BENE RE - IAb] 46,71 83,398 - 5,340 - 5,340
Pledged bank deposits BEASAEN 37626 - - 37626 48,256 - - 4825
Cash and cash equivdlents & RAEEED 118,050 - - 118050 186285 - - 186265
190,126 3712 421 BZM 28053 5,340 - 85875
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. *RMIARERRMEE (&)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (continued) () =R T AR (&)
Group rEE
Financial liabilities THEE
2009 2008
—EENEF —EENEF
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities

at amortised at amortised

cost cost

TR 8 R AR R SEAAR

FEZ FEZ

TRIBE TRLAE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FHET

Accounts and bills payable FETRR R R JE TR IR 12,967 6,884

Other payables H A FE S BRX 2,092 -~
Amount due to a minority S — (L DB R IR

shareholder - 34,255

Convertible notes AR REE 30,563 69,074

45,622 110,213
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. *RTARERRREE (&)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (continued) () T BRI (&)
Company NN
Financial assets TEEE
2009 2008
“EENE —ZTN\E
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
Loansand  profit or Loans and profit or
receivables loss Total receivables loss Total
BEBEH BRBHE
RAAEE BAREE
EXR I 2 Rk k-

BHER SREE ait  ERER SREE GE
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000
TEx TRz TEx  TET  TER  TER

Other receivables H it JEUBR X 3,079 - 3,079 - - -
Amounts due from NG

subsidiaries HIA 114,943 - 114,943 56,440 - 56,440
Amount due from a el —EBE R A

related company 7oA - - - 1,095 - 1,095
Investments at fair value BREREAAEE

through profit or loss 5|82 & - 46,271 46,271 - 5,340 5,340
Cash and cash equivalents  B&RBEEEN 92,229 - 92,229 181,976 - 181,976

210,251 46,271 256,522 239,511 5,340 244,851
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued)

5. tMIANEAEMRERE ()

(a) Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Company
Financial liabilities

(a) =T AER (&)
AR E]

B E

2009 2008
—EENF —EENEFE
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities

at amortised

at amortised

(b)

cost cost

32 8 88 X A 1 55 A AR

STEZ AEZ

S =R el

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FAT

Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS— R B A Rl F A 18,305 15,827
Convertible notes A AR = iR 30,563 69,074
48,868 84,901

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
equity investments, accounts and bills receivable,
other receivables, loans receivable, amounts due
from related companies, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, accounts and bills
payable, other payables and amounts due to a
minority shareholder. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(b) MIBEMEREBERBE

AEBZIEZSRMTABERA
BE - BBRERLRERRE X
ftb FE U RR 5X - IR UMK B 5K - FE UK B
ERAE S EWRITER
ReMBSFEY BHERKL
EN R - RN RR L EN
—ABBRRRE - ZEFEERMT
AFBEREMERE - TX&ET
HzEor TAEARRZER &M
EERZFRARZIBR - EEE
EREREEZERR  ABERN
Ry M B RO R BUE 2 2 15

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 £ ¥}

(S

e PR R M EE

69



16

Ol

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B#EmEHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE-—TZThAhF=A=+—HLFE

70

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B J 2 e AR 2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

TRITAREXARBRERE (F)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets include
accounts and bills receivable, other receivables,
loans receivable, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, amounts due from related
companies, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in the event of counterparties’ failure
to perform their obligations as at 31 March 2009
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
period credit evaluations of its customers. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regards, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties.

The table below shows the balance of 3 major
counterparties (including liquid funds) at the
balance sheet date using the Moody's credit rating
symbols.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

5. tMIANEAEMRERE ()

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(b) BEEEEREBZERBE (&)

Credit risk (continued) 1EEm b (&)
2009 2008
—EBNF —EENEF
Counterparty Rating HK$'000 HK$'000
RZHF TR FET THET
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited Al 368 2,513
REIRTT (BHE) BRAA]
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Baal 153,684 225,306
(Hong Kong Branch)
ZBIRITIRDBR AR (FEDTT)
Standard Bank Asia Limited A2 1,264 -
ZAERITRIMNER AT
Market risk 755 JE B

(i) Foreign currency risk

Certain bills receivable and payable and
cash and cash equivalents of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management considers the foreign exchange
exposure is relatively insignificant currently
and will monitor foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

() SRR
REEETRENEENRER
AEBReRREFEWTIA
SNVEETE - BRI AREY
BOMNES MBI - AT - B
ERER/INE R B AT EH
BRI BE R HIMNE BB M
£ B E I EKINE
[RL B2
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. *RITARERRMREE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) I EKMEREBZERBUEER (&)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) R (4E)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) () MR (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REMBE - REBAIINE
currency denominated monetary assets and FECEKEEREEAR
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are ZEEBEELT :
as follows:
Assets B
2009 2008
—ZEENF —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Renminbi AR 4 -
Singapore Dollars N T 305 41,151
US Dollars eV 43,570 -
Liabilities =4/
2009 2008
—BEAE  —TT)E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Singapore Dollars Fr AN 7T 262 41,139
US Dollars ETT 12,967 -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. *RMIARERRMEE (&)

(b) BEEEEREBZERBE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) 75 A f (4E)

(i) Price risk (i ERRR
AEEZBEFREBERIZ

7 ETE?'JEEZE\%L%FZ ?
XBRABHERRR -
B#EBEATRER Z&ﬁiﬁ

The Group is exposed to equity security price
risk through its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles. &EEZE R -
Sensitivity analysis BRI

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower:

« net loss for the year ended 31 March
2009 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,856,000 (2008:
decrease/increase by HK$267,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

+ other equity reserves would not
increase/decrease.

The Group's sensitivity to equity prices
has increased from prior year because the
Group’s has increased its investment in
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

AT BREE DT —RE 2 W
B B AT A X 2 I B R 1 2
i o]

fis B 18 _EFt T F&5% :

T+ —BHLEFEZS
BEEKEERD G
0 #91,856,000% 7T (=
TENF D M
267,000 L) * T EH
BREBE=Z AR EED

FeemEEZAAE
BEEFHs% K&

- HihEZRESTEIE
R A e

REBREFHBEHREZ
BRELAZETERARA
SEEMTEBBRRAR
BEJIKRZEMEE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

TRITAREXARRBERE (F)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents with original maturity
ranging from 1 month to 6 months. As at
31 March 2009, the Group had no interest-
bearing bank borrowings. Therefore, any
future variations in interest rates will mainly
lead to change in interest income of the
Group.

Ligquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash and
the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group
also aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
arranging and keeping committed banking facilities
and other external financing available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been
for capital investments and repayment of related
debts. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds
generated from operations.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. *RMIARERRMEE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEEKEREBEZERBUEER (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B E 2 m b (E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial RIECFTHARBIBER - AEH
liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on REEBzemEBEDERHT
the contracted undiscounted payments, was as mr
follows:
Group REH
Less than 3to 12 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total
FEE R PR Z@EAZE il
BE =@A =R —F &%

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET Ti&RT T#ET TERT TERT

As at 31 March 2009 R-ZEZAF=F=+—H

Accounts and bills FERT R

payable ADES - 12,967 - - 12,967
Other payables Ho A FE A BR3X - 2,092 - - 2,092
Convertible notes AR EE - - 32,500 - 32,500
- 15,059 32,500 - 47,559

Less than 3t012 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total

fEER LR ZEAZE i
=¥ =EA +ZfEA —F &5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TR AT TET TET

As at 31 March 2008 RZZEENF=ZA=1+—H

Accounts and bills FERT R

payable ARES - 6,884 - - 6,884
Amount due to a eI —RL D8

minority shareholder MR FRIR 34,255 - - - 34255
Convertible notes EEA) &2 - - - 80,000 80,000

34,255 6,884 - 80,000 121,139
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. *RTARERRREE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) I EKMEREBZERBUEER (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEEERE R (&)
Company VNN
Less than 3to 12 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total
FEZE R 2R =Z@EAZE ikl
BE =R +=fEAR —F &5t

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TERx T#&T TERT TR

As at 31 March 2009 R-ZEZEAF=F=+—H

Amount due to a FER—RKTB

subsidiary NAIFIA 18,305 - - - 18,305
Convertible notes AR ERE - - 32,500 - 32,500
18,305 - 32,500 - 50,805

Less than 3t012 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total

FEEX PR ZERAZE e
BR =@EA +=fER —f At

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET THET TET TET THET

As at 31 March 2008 RZBEENFE=ZA=1+—H

Amount due to a JEN —FEH B
subsidiary NAIFIAE 15,827 - - - 15,827
Convertible notes AR EE - - - 80,000 80,000

15,827 - - 80,000 95,827
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

EMITEREARNAREE ()

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

«  the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask prices,
respectively; and

« the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis or using prices from observable
current market transactions.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

(b) BEEEEREBZERBE (&)

PRTAZANIEE

TREERETRABENALEE
ToLATN 5177 N EER]

s MWBEEEKEREEE BER
EREERBETMBEERRN
THMEENAAEE D
RIBEFRBRNMEELNME
ABEBR] &

- HtemEELRETBABED
NaBE JIREERERWM
MWEBRE  URERBE SR
AMKABOERMER S
BEIRER -

RAPEER/ECHHNAR
HEVBRRIGZEREER
TRBEECREEREERAEE
GRS
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

51

TRITAREXARBRERE (F)

78

(c) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital to
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debts, which include convertible notes and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Group,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Group review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As a part of this
review, the directors of the Group consider
the cost of capital and other sources of funds
other than issuance of shares, including issue of
convertible notes. Based on the recommendation
of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through raising
or repayment of borrowings.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued) 58

(c) Capital risk management (continued)

EMITEREARNAREE ()
(c) EXRAMEE (&)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
The gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided
by capital and total debt. During the year ended
31 March 2009 and 2008, the Group's strategy
was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. The

HEFREMEERERLE  AKER
BREAEARNLRERERNENR -
EXRBEBELERENREBHRIAE
ARBEBFE RBE_FF
NER_FENF=ZA=1—
HIEFE ANEBRMADKRES

gearing ratio at 31 March 2009 and 2008 were as RE/FEEEARBBELERKF -1

follows: ZETENEFERZZEENF=A
=t+t—H®NEARBGBELEERAT :

Group rEEH
2009 2008
—EEBNAF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Convertible notes,

the liability component AR SRR - B EM D 30,563 69,074
Total debt RET 30,563 69,074
Total equity B 228,033 177,171
Capital and total debt B R HBES 258,596 246,245
Gearing ratio BEAREELE 0.12 0.28

HE_ZZAF=A=1T—RHILFE
WEABGBHETK®  TZ2RAREK
B~ TR R L A AR
BRBNDEEEDEN R - F7R
ZHREFTRERD -

The gearing ratio decreased during the year ended
31 March 2009 because of increase in equity as a
result of placing of shares, share options exercised
and conversion of convertible notes into shares
while total debt decreased during the year.

The Group overall strategy remains unchanged FAN - REEREE FHRRRIEAE o
during the year.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

6.

TEEH

80

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (a) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (b) on a secondary
segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products they provide. Each of
the Group's business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments. Summary details of business
segments are as follows:

«  the supply and procurement segment represents
supply and procurement activities in office
equipment and office supplies, machinery,
machinery parts, lubricating oil, bunkerage for
vessels, fuel, metal minerals and recycled metal
materials;

« the provision of finance segment represents
provision of short-term loan financing activities;

« the securities investment segment represents
investment activities in equity securities and
equity-linked notes; and

« the corporate and others segment comprise of
corporate income and expense items and holding
of property activities.

In determining the Group's geographical segments,
revenue are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers. Assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers among
the business segments.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss)

and certain asset,

liability and expenditure

information for the Group's business segments for
the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

(a) £ D3E

TREJINAKEEE-_ZTTNF
M_ZEZNF=ZA=1+—HILHF

EmEB B ZWA

w7 (s

BRETEE ABERAXZ

EH o
Supply and procurement  Provision of finance  Securities investment ~ Corporate and others Consolidated
HERFE RERE E5RE LERAM &
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
CEENE CZT)\E ZERNE T\ CBERE CZT)\F CEBBAE CET\E CBENE CET)F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Téx TEr  TEr  TET  TEr  TAT  TEn  TET  TEn  TAx
Segment revenue PERA
Sales to external customers  SVREF ZHER 348127 129582 1,681 - 338 - - - 350146 129,582
Other revenue and gains A AR E - 45 - - - - - 200 - 245
348127 129,627 1,681 - 338 - - 200 350,146 129,827
Segment results PE%E 9,718 11598 1571 - (1,103)  (3,600) - (6278) 10,186 1,720
Interest income and HMEBARKAR
unallocated revenue WA R
and gains 2,853 8,393
Unallocated expenses FARHR (10,805)  (15,673)
Finance costs RERK (3,015 (3,926)
Equity settled share-based WEREET RS
payment expenses THzHER (2,931) -
Loss before taxation BHAER (3712)  (9486)
Taxation ] (1,773) (655)
Loss for the year TEERB (5485)  (10,141)
Assets and liabilities BRAEE
Segment assets PEEE 84264 45834 10,732 - 83398 6,435 - 8341 178,394 60,610
Unallocated assets FOREE 96,875 230,239
Total assets BEE 275,269 290,849
Segment liabiities PRAE 15811 43349 140 - - - - 1255 15951 44604
Unallocated liabilities FHRBE 31,285 69,074
Total liabilities BEE 47236 113,678
Other segment information ~ Efh 5 E&#
Impairment loss recognised ~ EA IR 2
in respect of other ERAAEES
receivable - - - - - - 2,040 - 2,040 -
Depreciation and recognition ~ FEREREN 11
of prepaid land lease HENE
payments 5 147 - - - - 440 2,070 445 2217
Impairment of gooduwil BERE - - - - - - - 6,478 - 6,478
Capital expenditure BRYI - - - - - - 1,736 15 1736 15
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
(b) Geographical segments (b) HESHE
The following table presents revenue and certain TREVWAEKEERE-_ZTZTNF
asset and expenditure information for the Group's ;EZZEENF=ZA=+—HILF
geographical segments for the years ended 31 ERtE@ o B ARSE TEE
March 2009 and 2008. BT HZER -
The People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC")
(including Hong Kong
Singapore and Mainland China) Consolidated
REARLNE ([HE])
s (BREBERTELRE) &a
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE ZE)\F ZBEAF ZTT\F ZEBNE —ZTI\F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER TAT TER TAT FER TAT
Segment revenue PERA
Sales to external customers  SMREF 2 HEHE 49,135 129582 301,011 - 350,146 129,582
Other segment information  Eft A EEH
Segment assets NEEE 305 45,834 274,964 245,015 275,269 290,849
Capital expenditure EAXH - - 1,736 15 1,736 15
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7.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

WA~ HEAW AR Y s

(S

e R R M EE

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

WA~ B AR zm DT

follows:
2009 2008
—EZENE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Revenue PN
Sale of goods HEEY 348,127 129,582
Interest income from provision REEE 2 F B A
of finance 1,681 -
Dividend income on investment & EMRAFES
in listed equity securities Z B 89 -
Interest income on investment LEREHBERER
in equity-linked notes Z F B YA 249 -
350,146 129,582
Other income Hug A
Bank interest income RITH) B UA 3,483 2,574
Interest income on loans receivable & E F 2 K 2 U A - 693
Interest income on amount due eI — I BEE A B 58
from a related company 2 F B WA - 30
Rental income B2 A 154 200
Others Efth 517 169
4,154 3,666
Gains U &
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B ATz s
(note 36) (Ft3E36) - 4,562
Write-back of accrued expenses FEET R = e - 395
Others Hib - 15
- 4,972
4,154 8,638
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RERAK
2009 2008
—EEAF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Interest on: A

Bank loans and other loan wholly ERAFARNZEEE
repayable within five years ZRITERREMER 29 538
Convertible notes AR R 2,986 3,388
3,015 3,926
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

9.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

9. BRBAIEE

e R R M EE

2009 2008
—EBENF ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
The Group's loss before taxation  ZN&EEBRFLATE B
is arrived at after charging: MR T &IE :
Staff cost (excluding directors’ ETRA (TBEES
remuneration — note 10): & —Mi5E10)
Wages and salaries TITENHFS 1,921 2,552
Pension scheme contributions RRE TR 99 140
Equity settled share-based VARE 55 45 B0 LARR D
payment expenses AN pdba 1,834 -
Total staff cost BT RA4a%E 3,854 2,692
Impairment loss recognised in E b e ARTR 2 2
respect of other receivable R EE 1R 2,040 -
Auditors’ remuneration % ERED BN & 710 1,080
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAN 305,411 113,747
Depreciation of property, M -~ BB KR
plant and equipment (note 15) ZYTE (Mizx15) 445 156
Depreciation of investment WEMEZITE
properties (note 16) (PftzE16) - 1,541
Recognition of prepaid land lease ~ #REN L E
payments (note 17) I (MEE17) - 520
Exchange losses, net E W e - JFE 1,940 897
Minimum lease payments in Bt REFZ
respect of land and buildings =EHE 1,300 580
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BB &
plant and equipment B pd S 13 -
and after crediting: 25t A
Net rental income HE WA FFE (154) (200)
Net losses on investments at fair FBIEZZ QA AEEIER
value through profit or loss: ZIREZEIRFR
Proceeds on sales of listed HE FTRAEFKREZ
equity securities investments FT18 58038 (3,843) (73,459)
Less: cost of sales T SHE AR 5,478 76,190
Net realised loss on investment in &% & F WA Z A2
listed equity securities B #I5 E 1855 1,635 2,731
Unrealised loss on investment in RE FTMRAFE S
listed equity securities REREE 1,109 869
Unrealised gain on investment in 1 &ERERHTIE 2
equity-linked notes REFIR U AR (1,303) -
Net losses on investments at fair B BERIZ A A EEYIER
value through profit or loss ZIE BB SR 1,441 3,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #H=Z=_—F

9.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

FNF=A=1t—"BLFE

9. KRBAIEE (&)

10.

At 31 March 2009,
contributions available to reduce its contributions to

the Group had no forfeited
pension schemes in future years (2008: nil).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

RZZFZNF=ZA=+—0 ~%H
IHE/XLISM AT AR E R R R
BRARSEHEIER(ZFZENF ) -

10. EE £

86

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of

RIEBZMES EMRA (L™K
1) REERTGHIE 161 EHE 2

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) FEEEMSFBWOT
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:
2009 2008
—EZNF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Fees: we
Executive directors WITES - -
Independent non-executive L IEFNTT
directors FF 300 333
300 333
Other emoluments of executive WITES 2 EHAM
directors: %
Salaries, other allowances and Frd - AR &
benefits in kind EWH = 1,605 1,390
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 100 500
Pension scheme contributions RINEEF SR 85 95
Equity settled share-based VA 55 45 B0 LARR (9
payment expenses SN b 1,097 -
2,887 1,985
3,187 2,318

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k



POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED ‘ (\ l =
R g mnsd | \(0)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEM< (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERAXNTEILIERNITEEFZ
directors during the year were as follows: MEWT
Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EENEF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai BEEFEEE 120 120
Mr. Lau Pok Lam BB S A - 68
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan =EELE - 65
Mr. Weng Yixiang SAMTE 60 28
Mr. Lu Xinsheng BT ERE 60 26
Mr. Xiong Wei RRIZ R4 60 26
300 333
There were no other emoluments payable to the RNEEANTEENBIIENITEE 2
independent non-executive directors during the FRIEMMNE (ZFEENFE : #E) o

year (2008: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. ESEE (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Salaries, other Equity settled
allowances Pension  share-based
and benefits Discretionary scheme payment Total
in kind bonuses contributions expenses remuneration
e DRGSR
HitRE R RS I AR

BoRE  BRTA HERR XA2Rx WeRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TR THET

2009
—EENE
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul BRSEE - - - 457 457
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 4835844 720 60 39 137 956
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXLE 285 40 16 46 387
Mr. Zhang Zhidong REREE 600 - 30 - 630
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRERT - - - 457 457
1,605 100 85 1,097 2,887
2008
—ET)N\F
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BRERE 600 300 45 - 945
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 360 200 28 - 588
Mr. Zhang Zhidong REREE 277 - 14 - 291
Mr. Ng Eng Leng HEBLE 153 - 8 - 161
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul Bt E - - - - -
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BrELE - - - - -
Mr. Wilson Ng HERLAE - - - - -
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRALE - - - - -
1,390 500 95 - 1,985
There was no arrangement under which a director RFEEATESEFIEFEREMS KA
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration EREME 2Lk

during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. AV RS HEE

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four (2008: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining one (2008: two)

FAZOURSHEE 2H - O (=
TEN\F:ZU)REF HFZWE
B EINN EXMFEI0 . 8T — (T
—EE)N\F MU EFZEHE

non-director, highest paid employee for the year is BZMEBFBEET
follows:
Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EEAF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, other allowances e HEaRMEEY
and benefits in kind A 442 473
Pension scheme contributions RIS ET I 21 22
Equity settled share-based LA 5 45 I LARR 19 S A+
payment expenses A% 33 -
496 495

The remuneration of all non-director, highest paid
employees fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000
for the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

During the year, discretionary bonuses of HK$100,000
was paid to or receivable by two (2008: two) of
the five highest paid employee of the Group (2008:
HK$500,000). No emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2008: nil).

HE_ZFNFER_ZETNF=HA
=+—HLEFE FEIEFZES
FEE 2 &9 FZ 21,000,000/
JTZABIA -

FR XN RENAENESHEEH
FRAU(ZZEZENFE WA 2W5
fE4T &100,0008 L (Z T )\ F -
500,000/ 7T) © AN BB [ A R
&= EEB e AR %S
BA 7N & 8] ol 1E & 0N BR 7N £ B B 2 o B
NEBERHE(CEENFE &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

12. TAXATION 12. HI1R
2009 2008
—ZEEAF —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Group: REH
Current — Hong Kong BIHA— & 221 3
Current — Elsewhere BIER — H fth b [
Charge for the year REEHIBEZH - 1,763
Under/(over)provision in BEFERETIRS
prior years (EBRR%E) 1,552 (1,111)
Total taxation charge for the year ~ AFEEFHIES H40%8 1,773 655

Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 March
2009 was calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

12. #IR (4&)

12. TAXATION (continued)

(S

e R R M EE

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the AREFZHREBL HEEES WS RTR
loss before taxation per the consolidated income FRIGATE B SRRINT
statement as follows:
Group — 2009 AEE-—Z2NEF
Mainland
Hong Kong  Singapore China Total
58 ESWIE H B K BE |F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET THERT FHET
Loss before taxation BrEiAIE 1B (2,950) (762) - (3,712)
Tax at the applicable tax rate  ZEAMETE 2 Fi1E (487) (137) - (624)
Tax effect of income not BARTBAZ BB
taxable for tax purpose 2 (587) ) - (589)
Tax effect of expenses not AR 2
deductible for tax purpose BT E 1,220 - - 1,220
Tax effect of tax losses not AERRBEER
recognised 2B E 229 139 - 368
Adjustment in respect of AT HR
current tax of previous = EAR I8
periods e 2 FHE - 1,552 - 1,552
Effect of utilisation of tax B LA RIER T
losses previously not ERzZE
recognised (186) - - (186)
Others Hit 32 - - 32
Taxation charge at the BASEERBE
Group's effective rate EZREBEYH 221 1,552 - 1,773
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=E—TThhF=A=+—HIEFE
12. TAXATION (continued) 12. FiI1E (&)
Group — 2008 REB - —FT)N\F
Mainland
Hong Kong Singapore China Total
B EIIWIIE: BN B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET THET THT
Profit/(loss) before taxation WAL, (EB1E) (19,593) 11,557 (1,450) (9,486)
Tax at the applicable tax rate  ¥ZEATEFTE 2 FH1E (3,429) 2,080 (479) (1,828)
Tax effect of income not BERTIA
taxable for tax purpose BB E (1,400) (348) - (1,748)
Tax effect of expenses not AR
deductible for tax purpose B R 2,415 3] 31 2,477
Tax effect of tax losses not KRR S E R
recognised I E 2,417 - 448 2,865
Adjustment in respect of BB AR
current tax of previous = HHIA
periods fEH 2 % - (1,111) - (1,111)
Taxation charge at the Group's ERAEEEEREREAE
effective rate ZBEZ L 3 652 - 655
13. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 13. AR AERFAEARGEE
The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders RARRMBREANBEECHE T

92

of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2009 includes a loss of HK$7,394,000 (2008:
HK$5,142,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14. ARBIERFEARLERER
2009 2008
—EBENF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss %=
Loss attributable to equity holders 2N G4E 1A AE(S
of the Company Es1E 4,907 12,854
2009 2008
—EEREF —EENEF
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares BRHEHE
Weighted average number of MABETRELREEZ
shares for the purpose of A& 1 e ¥ 15 L
basic loss per share 1,232,351 792,002
Basic and diluted loss per share for the years ended MR H B AR RRIE S G TR E R
31 March 2009 and 2008 have been presented as WA AfmARBESNE  HALEE
equal because conversion of convertible notes would TEENFRZEENF=ZA=F—
decrease the loss per share, therefore, anti-dilutive. HIEFEZEREARAREEHEEZY
AHER o
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

WO ERA RS A

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FNF=A=1t—"BLFE
15. 1% - BERRME

Group AEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
&~ KER
HEHEE B pat:] &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT T TAT
Cost: BUAS
At 1 April 2007 RZZET+FHHA—A 25 1,650 - 1,675
Exchange realignment P& I R ) 44 _ 46
Additions NE - 15 - 15
Disposals HE - - - -
At 31 March 2008 and RZFEENF=A=1—H
1 April 2008 E-Z2FT/\FMA—A 27 1,709 - 1736
Exchange realignment b 5 3B - (23) - (23)
Additions NE 1,082 174 480 1,736
Disposals HE (27) (1,686) - (1,713)
At 31 March 2009 RZZTZAF=A=1+—H 1,082 174 480 1,736
Accumulated depreciation and ~ REMERREE !
impairment:
At 1 April 2007 R-_ZZ+FNA—R 16 1,497 - 1,513
Exchange realignment BE i, S B 1 40 - 41
Provided for the year FEEE 7 149 - 156
Elimination on disposals HE RS _ _ _ _
At 31 March 2008 and RZZEZNF=ZA=+—H
1 April 2008 RZZEZNFHA—A 24 1,686 - 1,710
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 5 B - (23) - (23)
Provided for the year FEEE 400 37 8 445
Elimination on disposals 5 R B 8 (26) (1,672) -~ (1,698)
At 31 March 2009 RZEZNF=A=+—H 398 28 8 434
Carrying values: BREE :
At 31 March 2009 R-Z2AE=ZA=1—-H 684 146 472 1,302
At 31 March 2008 RZEENF=A=+—H 3 23 - 26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued) 15. Y12 - BMERZ®E (&)
Company PN
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
&AM
HERE KENFEE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FTAT
Cost: BAS
At 1 April 2007 R-ZZZ+FMA—H 8 1214 1,222
Exchange realignment 0 50 % - - -
Additions NE - 15 15
Disposals HE - - -
At 31 March 2008 and R-TF/\F=ZA=1+—H
1 April 2008 R-EF\ENA—H 8 1,229 1,237
Exchange realignment B 50 8% - - -
Additions NE 1,082 174 1,256
Disposals HE (8) (1,229) (1,237)
At 31 March 2009 R-ZENEF=A=1+—H 1,082 174 1,256
Accumulated depreciation and ZRMERAE :
impairment:
At 1 April 2007 R-_ZZ+FMA—H 4 1,210 1214
Exchange realignment BE 5 G - - -
Provided for the year FEEE 1 4 5
Elimination on disposals 5 B A 85 - - -
At 31 March 2008 and RAZEENF=A=+—H
1 April 2008 &_YYJ\EEH B 5 1214 1,219
Exchange realignment BE i G - - -
Provided for the year FEEEB 400 32 432
Elimination on disposals 6 B A 85 ) (1,218) (1,225)
At 31 March 2009 R—EENEFE=A=1—H 398 28 426
Carrying values: BREE :
At 31 March 2009 R-ZENF=A=1-H 684 146 830
At 31 March 2008 R-TE/\F=ZA=1+—H 3 15 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

B H5 R AR MY R

15. M2 - BERRE (FE)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

EiiE - BERREBEEB IIRER

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following ERBATFRIFTE -
rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements 209% or over the lease terms, MERE 20%3k 1= 7 5
whichever is shorter (ABEE A%E)
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 20% B HEREE  20%
Motor vehicles 20% A E 20%
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWZE
Group
REE
2009 2008
I —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost: AR
At 1 April KEA—H - 23,398
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMEA A
(note 36) (Kt5E36) - (24,629)
Exchange realignment M 34, 8 B - 1,231
At 31 March R=A=+—H - -
Accumulated depreciation and  REITE
impairment: RRE :
At 1 April A A—H - 3,210
Depreciation provided for REE
the year e - 1,541
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR
(note 36) (ft3E36) - (5,097)
Exchange realignment PE 5 58 B - 346
At 31 March W=A=+—H - -
Net book value: EREDFE -
At 31 March W=A=+—8H - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #H=Z_—-F

FNF=H =1 _Eule=i

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. B LA EFKE

Group

REE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Carrying amount at 1 April KA — B ZREE - 31,903
Recognised during the year RN FEHER - (520)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEKBA R (ME36) - (33,035)
Exchange realignment PE 5 78 B - 1,652

Carrying amount at 31 March
Current portion

%JF 152

Non-current portion

FEmBE D

The prepaid land lease payments were paid for the

right to use certain lands under long term leases in
Mainland China. On 30 November 2007, the respective
land use rights were disposed of upon completion of

the disposal of subsidiaries (note 36).

BN EERBEIREERBEOE
RRPBEREZET L Z MM
Xt - R-_FFELF+—-HA=+H"
EEMIHERENTREEHRB R
Al W& (EE36) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B#EmEHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE-—TZThAhF=A=+—HLFE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of additional 24% 't —fz > Ak "RHuang & Co
interest in Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd. (“Xin (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.([HCSPLJ) W f&
Procurement”) from the minority shareholder, Huang Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd.
& Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ("HCSPL"), is related to the (I'Xin Procurement]) < 8845MN24%#E 2=
procurement business cash-generating unit. EEZEBESRNRBERRCELSE

fif o

During the year ended 31 March 2008, Xin (2 EENF="A=+—BHLHF
Procurement had operated under an adverse J& » Xin Procurementp? R [ IR 357 T 4
environment and lost one of the key customers. The BUWREHEF—NUEEEF - AQF]
directors of the Company evaluated the business ZE{hXin Procurementz 2 75 & &)
activity and future performance of Xin Procurement NRARRKE  WERERBEBRCE
and determined, with reference to the recoverable FBEMzAkEISREE  BESRE
amount of the procurement business cash-generating E-EENF=-RA=+—HILFER
unit, that an impairment provision on goodwill of BT IR R (B 156,478,000 L * B
HK$6,478,000 was required and charged to the FABED RS R &R -
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2008.

19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS 19. RMfiB AT ZREREW ~ (FE{T)

DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES MBS A Rl 2 I8
Company
N

2009 2008

—ZEENF —TENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost JELETRRD - ARKAREST - -
Less: Provision for impairment R R E R - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE W B BB~ B FR 0B 119,595 56,561
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE R (4,652) (121)
114,943 56,440
Amount due to a subsidiary FE —FE b B A Rl 5RIE (18,305) (15,827)
96,638 40,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #EHZEZE-ZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS 19.

DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

REBRR 2 REREY, ()
B B8~ 5] 2 FRIE (88)

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured
and have no fixed terms of repayment. Of the balances,
approximately HK$69,070,000 (2008: HK$8,094,000)
of the amounts due from subsidiaries bear interest
at an effective interest rate of prime rate plus 4.5%
(2008: prime rate plus 4%) per annum and the
remaining balances are non-interest bearing.

During the year, the directors of the Company
reviewed and examined the current operations of
the subsidiaries and identified that the present value
of estimated net future cash flows from certain
subsidiaries are lower than their carrying amounts.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider an
impairment loss of HK$4,531,000 should be provided

as at the balance sheet date.

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at
31 March 2009 are as follows:

Nominal value

fEU  (FES) BB A Bl 2 3RIA AR
R R fE [ E B R HE - R KR B A A
FRIAF - #969,070,0008 7T (ZZZ N\
F 8,094,000/ L) IH IR & B B F =
MEMERLISE(ZBEENFE  REH
FENAE) 2 BEBRFEFE - MeREE
BRs e

FR AR ERFEEHNEZNE
NEZBRBER WEHERETHES
RElZEEFRRBESREFE LR
BENRFEEZHR@EME Bt XRQA
EERAEREERBEHLREEIEB
4,531,000/ 7T °

ARRR_FTNF=ZA=+t—HZ
TEMBRABZEMNT

Percentage of

Place of of issued
incorporation ordinary
Name and operations share capital
EEaiio A BETEBRR
=1 R BRAZEE
Able Market Profits Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1
Islands (“BVI") LRBIET
KBRUES
Poly Resources (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
REER (M) BERAA] B HK$7,800,000
% i8/7,800,000/8 7T
Wealth Fame International BVI Ordinary US$1
Limited EBELES LERIET
HEERBRAT
Xin Corporation (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
Limited EE LRR2ET
HEEALR(FR)BRAT
Xin Credit Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
MEEERBARLAF 30 ERRIET
Xin Procurement Singapore Ordinary S$10,000
Mg E3®BAR10,000% T

equity attributable
to the Company
Direct  Indirect Principal activities
AREREEZADL
BE# BiF:3 FERH
100 - Investment holding
REER
- 100 Supply and
procurement
e LR
100 - Investment holding
REEKR
- 100 Provision of
management service
REEERS
- 100 Provision of finance
RHERE
- 75 Supply and
procurement
fH e R IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B#EmEHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE-—TZThAhF=A=+—HLFE

19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS 19. RAMfiB AT ZREREW ~ (FE{T)

DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) IS A Bl 2 FRIE (4E)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company BEERE ERFAVWZARNBHER
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally U AFEZEBELATEZE 5L
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial BRAEEEEFEZIZEH D - &
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details ERA HMEMREB AR BHENS
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the BRI °
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
20. INVENTORIES 20. FE
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Goods held for resale BEEE 2 Em - 1,234
21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 21. BRI KRB EE
Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EEBNF —ETZNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Accounts receivable JE U BR FR 1,073 36,468
Less: Impairment loss recognised  Ji : B FEREEEIE - -
1,073 36,468
Bills receivable FEW I 18,928 -
20,001 36,468
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #EHZEZE-ZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

(continued) 21. BRI KR EWERRE (&)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are BRIEP —MESENKIEIN KK
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where BEEHEHERFESBRAUNEELSE
payment in advance is normally required. The credit EEH—RAB—@EA MEEEP
period is generally for a period of one month, AlfERZ=Z XA  -BEEPFPH
extending up to three to six months for major ExmZERE =R EEESTEH
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. % rl i HR A4S R o FEURBR TR K B L R 4R
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior TatB o BBER R EWRE 2 BRE
management. Accounts and bills receivable are non- ERHEAAEBERS -

interest bearing. The carrying amounts of the accounts
and bills receivable approximate to their fair values.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable at REER REZA B RBREEER
the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, and net ZTEWER NN FE W SRR BR B AT a0 T ¢

of allowances, is as follows:

Group

AEE
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Within 30 days 308K 19,632 4,962
31 to 60 days 31Z260HR - 4,912
61 to 90 days 61E90H K 231 6,651
91 to 180 days 91ZE180HMN - 19,943
Over 180 days #BiE180H 138 -
20,001 36,468
Impairment A - _
Total &t 20,001 36,468
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
(continued)

21. BRI R BN RS (&)

102

The aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable
that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

IR (B 2 e U BR T I U = BR A
DT

Group

AEE
2009 2008
—EENF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Neither past due nor impaired A HA IR R VR E 19,632 4,962
Less than 1 month past due BE LR —EA - 4912
1 to 3 months past due BEH—Z=={EA 231 26,594
More than 3 months past due B HAEE A = @ A 138 -
20,001 36,468

Accounts and bills receivable that were neither past
due nor impaired relate to customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Accounts and bills receivable that were past due
but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k

R 380 H I R 1R B 2 MK B K e B MK
RIE T BT BN B R RIARD 8 2
BEAR -

B HIB R (F R B 2 FE U BR R e B W =
BIEEBEANEEE R FEGRCE
ZEYBEEAR REAELR X
RNAEERR ARZEBREZEE
BERHKE - HBARZFERIEL
BB - NEE I E L X F B
BEAERBREMERIEEY -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

22. BEFHE - BERHEMWEWIR

Group Company
AEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEThE —TT)\F ZBBEIRE —ZTT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT FET THET
Prepayments and deposits AR RIBRIZS 443 3,714 214 272
Other receivables H At U AR K 5,989 322 5,119 -
6,432 4,036 5,333 272
Less: Impairment loss A B HERIRE
recognised E518 (2,040) - (2,040) -
4,392 4,036 3,293 272
Movement of impairment losses recognised: ERABESEESE
Group Company
REE RAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEERE —ET)\F ZBEIRE —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Balance at beginning of
the year FHIREER - - - -
Impairment losses recognised
during the year FADERRBEEE 2,040 - 2,040 -
Balance at end of the year FaRsEeR 2,040 - 2,040 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

HE-PEAF=A=+—BILFE

(4&)

A M ERR M

22. TR FRIE ~ BE R H B AR X

The aged analysis of the impaired other receivables:

R (B H il FE U AR Rz BRER DA

Group Company
TEE /N

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —ZTENF ZBEBEAF —_TZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT FET FHIT
Less than 1 month past due  BHEIL R —1EA - - - -
1 to 3 months past due BH—EAZE=1EH - - - -
More than 3 months past due #HiiA 1B =1& A 2,040 - 2,040 -
2,040 - 2,040 -

AEBEERAMBE=AZEME
WERR 2 B3R - A EEMBUIRR
DAEERE -ERPEZEERE
RV EE SR E NI ERE L

The Group has provided fully for other receivable past
due more than 3 months in respect of refund of an
earnest money paid pursuant to a memorandum of
understanding regarding a potential investment in the

PRC. WEE -
23. LOANS RECEIVABLE 23. EWE R
Group
REH
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Loans receivable R E R 10,500 8,000

REBRKE R BEEREFE (EELF

The range of effective interest rates (which are equal

104

to contractual interest rates) on the Group's loans
receivable is 12% to 18% (2008: 18%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B iR izt
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE
23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 23. EWWE R (&)
The loans receivable, which are recoverable within one FEWERI ABEI I ERE TEaR
year, is neither past due nor impaired. In addition, the —ERUE o I - ZIEBERTIAE
loans are secured by a legal first charge on the assets RABEZBE AEMLERERAZ
of the borrower and personal guarantees from two M E R 2 EABRERR -
directors of the borrowers.
24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 24. BEREE QAR
Particulars of amounts due from related companies, JiE s B & A ?KIEZ.:?H RIBEER
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong AMEGIZE161BIGHEELN T ¢
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:
Group rEHE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during 31 March
Name 2009 the year 2008
—ERNE  FRREN ZZTNF
= =A=+—H Eee¥ —HA=1—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B st THER THER FiET
GT Capital Limited REERARRAT (a) - 1,095 1,095
Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd. (b) - 109 109
- 1,204 1,204
Company NN
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during 31 March
Name 2009 the year 2008
—EENE FRREN ZZTNF
= =A=+—-H Eee¥E —A=1—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B et THER TER TET
GT Capital Limited SEERARA (a) - 1,095 1,095
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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R B ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE-—TZThAhF=A=+—HLFE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

(continued)

24. BEREEE L RFIE ()

106

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company
opened a securities trading account with GT Capital
Limited (“GT Capital”) for securities investment purpose.
GT Capital is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
is engaged in securities brokerage, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Yunnan Tin Minerals Group
Company Limited, a company subject to significant
influence by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul, a director of the
Company. The amount due from GT Capital represents
the unsecured cash deposit maintained in the securities
trading account with GT Capital earning interest at

prevailing market interest rates.

(b) Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd. (“Huang Procurement”) is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HCSPL. The balance with
Huang Procurement is unsecured, interest-free and has

no fixed terms of repayment.
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(b)

BHE-_ZZNF=ZA=+—HILHF
B ARAESE2RERAR (S
EemMDRALIEFRIES - UIEE
FREME -SERR—HREE
AMR IR EEBFELEB 2R
HATHEHBEXEBRERARZE
BBAT - MAQREEFRELE
EHPREGREREEEBRARAR
BEAFEN BUSESBZIRE
REGFHRESESRAN 2ESFR
28R P AR IR AT 5 M R RELA 8 2
BIIFE TR -

Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd. ([Huang
Procurement]) AHCSPLZ & &K E A
7] o HiHuang Procurement 2 &% &4 /& 4
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POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B e 2 ik AR 2

e R R M EE

FNF=H =1 _Eule=i

25. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS 25. BBREREAARBEIKZKRE
Investments at fair value through profit or loss FRBRBR AL BEIK I IREBRRE:
comprise:
Group Company
AER VNN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENFE —ZTENF ZBEAF —ZTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET FHET
Held for trading: RHIEEE
— Listed equity securities - BB T TIRAES
investments in Hong Kong, ®RE - HME
at market value (note a) (B 7xa) 37,127 5,340 - 5,340
Financial assets designated EEBEBERTK
at fair value through profit AREEINRZ
or loss: TREE
— Equity-linked notes (note b) — REEHIER
(MizEb) 46,271 - 46,271 -
83,398 5,340 46,271 5,340
Notes: B 3
(a) The listed equity securities investments at 31 March @ RZZEZEANFRZZZENFZ=A
2009 and 2008 were classified as held for trading. ST —RAZ ETRABFRETI DA
The fair values of listed equity securities investments RFEEEE - TTRABHFREZR
are determined based on the quoted market bid prices REEDBRBEBIMAGRcEEEE
available on the Stock Exchange. JE °
(b) The equity-linked notes represent notes with interests (b) BEHMBRBPIBRBEMES ZFE

payments based on the annual return of the underlying
securities. Each equity-linked note held by the Group
contains embedded derivatives. Hence, the Group
designated the entire equity-linked notes as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair values of equity-linked notes are based on the
valuation provided by an independent valuer, which is
determined based on pricing model with inputs such
as share price of the underlying equity securities, the
strike price, if any, of the contracts and volatility of the
underlying equity securities.

EIBAENBZRE - KEEAFHEA
ZEEREHBERBEMARNITE
IH- Ilit REBEEETZMRER

AERBEABRERRAABEINERZ
ERMEE -
BEHBREZ AR BEENREE L

HERD TR Z B ERTE - BIREA
B AE S 2 B - B8 Z1TEE (4
B) REERAES 2 KIEmEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

A M ERR M

26. RERBASEEYRESEMRT

108

BANK DEPOSITS YEE
Group Company
rEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ERhEFE —TT)N\F ZEBEBEREF ZIZNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FiER FET
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH 68,050 8,099 42,229 4,930
Time deposits TE BRI 87,626 226,442 50,000 177,046
155,676 234,541 92,229 181,976
Less: Pledged bank deposits o BEIRRITER
(note 37) (F3E37) (37,626) (48,256) - -
118,050 186,285 92,229 181,976

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposit is made
for varying periods of between 1 month to 1 year
depending on immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earns interest at the respective time
deposit rate. The bank balances, time deposits and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

27. BNBRARREMNEE

The aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable at

the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as

follows:

REER REFZAHHZENERKL
BNRBEREDTAOT

Group

AEE
2009 2008
—EEhF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THTT
Within 30 days 30HA 12,967 4,083
31 to 60 days 31E60HA - 2,184
61 to 90 days 61E90H K - 47
91 to 180 days 91E180HA - 294
Over 180 days #Bi®180H - 276
12,967 6,884

The accounts and bills payable are non-interest

bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.
As at 31 March 2009, the Group had bills payable of
HK$12,967,000 (2008: nil), which were within 30

days.

ENERRENEBE TGS BER
—MREOBRER -R_ZTTHhF
“A=+—B Ax5EHFRENEE
12,967,000 T (ZEZENF : &) -
HERAR B30B R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

28. H MBS BRF K B ST KR

A M ERR M

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group Company
REH ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENFE —ZEEINF ZFEEIE —_TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FET FHBT FHET
Other payables b FE AT BR K 2,092 - - -
Accruals FERTFRIA 1,196 1,854 643 1,254
3,288 1,854 643 1,254

29. BN —(U D HRRZHKIEA
JE A — iz > B R 2 SRR I KA
% B MR B EE R -

29. AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a minority shareholder was

unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of
repayment.

30. AT EHE
Group and Company

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

AEERARDT
2009 2008
—EEAF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
New Convertible Notes and FrE AR R T &
New Vision Century Notes #FHyVision CenturyZ2i%
(as defined below) (BEERETX)
— classified as current liabilities —SERTEBEE 30,563 -
— classified as non-current —DHEARERBEE
liabilities - 69,074
30,563 69,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 30. AT AR EE (&)

Notes:

On 20 June 2007, the Company entered into (i) a conditional
placing agreement with Interchina Securities Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) in relation to the placing by the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, of the Company’s convertible
notes with principal amount up to HK$100,000,000 (the
“New Convertible Notes”) to independent third parties (the
“Placing Agreement”); and (ii) a conditional option agreement
with Vision Century Group Limited (“Vision Century”), the
Company's former immediate holding company, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to grant
to Vision Century an option exerciseable during the option
period to subscribe for convertible notes to be issued by the
Company with principal amount up to HK$100,000,000 (the
“New Vision Century Notes”) at a consideration of HK$10
(the “"Option Agreement”). The terms of the New Convertible
Notes will be identical to those of the New Vision Century
Notes. The completion of the Placing Agreement, the Option
Agreement and the issue of the New Convertible Notes
and the New Vision Century Notes were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company in the special
general meeting of the Company held on 6 August 2007.

Pursuant to the Placing Agreement and the Option
Agreement, the New Convertible Notes and the New Vision
Century Notes are convertible into shares of the Company at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.28 per share.

On 17 September 2007, the Company issued the first
tranche of the New Convertible Notes in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 to six independent third
parties (the “Subscribers”) for general working capital of
the Company. The Subscribers had the right to convert the
outstanding principal amount of the New Convertible Notes
into shares of the Company at any time before 16 September
2009 at a conversion price of HK$0.28 per share. The
Company may at any time prior to the maturity date repay the
whole or part of the principal outstanding amount of the New
Convertible Notes. The New Convertible Notes were interest-
free and wholly repayable by 16 September 2009.

On 18 September 2007, the Subscribers converted the entire
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 of the first tranche of
the New Convertible Notes, which resulted in a total number
of 142,857,141 shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the
Company.

i

RZZBEZEEFNAZ-Z+TH  AQRIGOER
PHEHFARAR (BREREDTL—EE
MBS - NE A RS R IERER
BAZEE ABYE=ZFTREALER
%100,000,000/% 7T Z A& 2 & Al # e R 4%
(MFre R sk ) (TEBEEHED + &)
BN B 2 B E E R A B)Vision Century
Group Limited ([ Vision Century]) 5137 —18
BREERERZ  BILEARTERNKE
107 7T B 1§14 A B % T Vision Century—I&
BEARHE - MVision Centuryi bt 7] 75 B A% 1
HBEANTEERERBEARAG T T
7N 4 8 & % 100,000,000/ Jt 2 A] IR =
& ([FHVision CenturyZ=¥& 1) ([ B IRAE R
) o BT ATHRAR AR 2 143X BLET A Vision
CenturyZ 8 7 (& FABR - Be & s N AR
M 2 ST A R B ATHT M A R IR AR R
Freyvision Century®R#E - ER T L F
NARNBRITZ AR AT A G ER
NGRSV & i 3

R 1R BC 6 19 5 I BB AR A 17 5 - BT AT AR AR
Z R M FTRIVision Century2E 35 A] & 4] 25 i
IR1EGRR028E T H M B AR RNFIRG -

RZZBEZELFNA+EH AARFETAR
% #8%8 540,000,000/ 7T 2 5 — #L ¥ @y A]
BREET BB LE=H([REALD
WERARR—REEEL RIEAGHE
RZZZANFNAATNBAMEMERE @&
BB ER028B T F M AT B EE 2
MAEERASBEHBRARNATRKRY - AR
A) ] B HA B AT T {a] B R (8 48 5T A0 TR AR
ZERAREEASER XY - HH AR
BREEDIRERAR-_ZEZAFALATA
AR Z8EE -

RZZEZ+FNLA+NH REARKR
F—HFHATBRRERZE2H NS E
40,000,000/ 7T * H AR A A 1T L
142,857,141 (R G AR EEO0.01 8 L 2R 15 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

30. AR EE (FF)

Notes: (continued)

On 17 September 2007, the Company issued the first tranche
of the New Vision Century Notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$40,000,000 to Vision Century. Vision Century
had the right to convert the outstanding principal amount of
the New Vision Century Notes into shares of the Company at
any time before 16 September 2009 at a conversion price
of HK$0.28 per share. The Company may at any time prior
to the maturity date repay the whole or part of the principal
outstanding amount of the New Vision Century Notes. The
New Vision Century Notes were interest-free and wholly
repayable by 16 September 2009.

On 18 September 2007, Vision Century converted the entire
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 of the first tranche of
New Vision Century Notes, which resulted in a total number
of 142,857,142 shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the
Company.

On 7 November 2007, the Company issued the second
tranche of the New Convertible Notes and the New Vision
Century Notes in the principal amount of HK$60,000,000
each to ten independent third parties (the “New Subscribers”)
and Vision Century, respectively. On 8 November 2007, the
New Subscribers converted an aggregate principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 of the New Convertible Notes, which resulted
in a total number of 35,714,285 shares of HK$0.01 each
being issued by the Company.

On 20 November 2007, Vision Century transferred the New
Vision Century Notes of principal amount of HK$60,000,000
to Global Wealthy Limited (“Global Wealthy”), a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul, a
director of the Company.

On 17 January 2008, Global Wealthy converted the
New Vision Century Notes in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000, which resulted in a total number of
107,142,857 shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the
Company.

On 9 May 2008, 10 June 2008 and 20 June 2008, the New
Subscribers transferred the principal amount of HK$500,000,
HK$17,000,000 and HK$4,500,000 respectively of the New
Convertible Notes to Global Wealthy.
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RZZEZLFNA+TER AARETAR
© #2 %8 /340,000,000 7T 2 55 — HLHT EY
Vision Century== & ?’Vision Century ° Vision
CentuyBER ZZZTNFE LA +RBH]
EAT B ] - #2488 5 AX0.2878 T #TEY
Vision CenturyZ2 ik 2 i KR EE A58 K5
RARBIRG o A2 F) AR 2 EF B A E A
fF R {E B #THYVision CenturyZ B R EE K
SRR IR I D o FHVision CenturyZ &
TR BERARZZEZNFAATREAZR
HEEZ-

RZZEZLFENHA+/\H - Vision Century
HRE — B MVision CenturyEiE 2 2

7K & %840,000,000/8 T B A A 7 ?ﬁ'
#E8142,857, 142 F M H E0.017B T 2 X

1/‘\ °

RZZETLF+—AtB - A2AHET
BBUE=ZH ([FREAD BITASHE
60,000,000/ 7T 2 % — #E 3T H) AJ R IR =R
K [mVision Century# 7778 860,000,000
BT 2 B HEF A Vision CenturyZ % o R
—ZTTLF+—ANR  FRBALBEEAS
#2%810,000,000/8 7T 2 $THY AR IR = 4% -
BEKN A BT 835,714,2850 B I E
BE0.01 T2 B °

RZZETELHF+—H =+ H " Vision
Century# 3 7~ 4 %860,000,0003% 7T ~
#1#Vision CenturyZ #& T Global Wealthy
Limited ([ Global Wealthy]) - Global
WealthyJ) —E BB AR AR EFHEML L ES
EBEmBEARZ AT -

RZZZ)\F—H++ A - Global Wealthy
¥ 7K € %830,000,0007% JT 2 ¥ HyVision
CenturyZ 1 - BB AR R 7] %17 48 8
107,142,857 T X E{E0.018 7T 2 I -

RZZEZENFRANA - :%ﬁég/\iﬁﬂ
TERZZEZNERAZTH  HREBA
7 Rl ¥ ZN £ §8500,000/% 7T + 17,000,000
78 7T $2.4,500,00058 7T 2 5 B AT A% SRR T
Global Wealthy °
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 30. AT AR EE (&)

Notes: (continued)

On 19 May 2008, the New Subscribers converted an
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 of the New
Convertible Notes, which resulted in a total number of
35,714,285 shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the
Company.

On 20 May 2008, the New Subscribers converted an
aggregate principal amount of HK$7,000,000 of the New
Convertible Notes, which resulted in a total number of
25,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the
Company.

On 22 May 2008, Global Wealthy converted the remaining
balance of the second tranche of the New Vision Century
Notes in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000, which
resulted in the issue of 107,142,857 shares of HK$0.01 each
by the Company.

On 22 May 2008, Global Wealthy converted an aggregate
principal amount of HK$500,000 of the New Convertible
Notes, which resulted in a total number of 1,785,714 shares
of HK$0.01 each being issued by the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the convertible notes, the initial
conversion price was adjusted from HK$0.28 per share
to HK$0.274 per share and the total number of shares to
be issued under the convertible notes was adjusted from
116,071,427 shares to 118,613,137 shares. Such adjustment
became effective on 6 March 2009. All the other terms
of the convertible notes remain unchanged. Details of
such adjustments are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 16 March 2009.

After the above conversions, as at 31 March 2009, the
outstanding principal amounts of the New Convertible Notes
was HK$32,500,000 and no New Vision Century Notes were
outstanding.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at
the issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate
for a similar note without a conversion option. The residual
amount is assigned as the equity component and is included
in shareholders’ equity.

BeE - (A&)

RZZEZENFRATNE  FREALR
7K & 42 5810,000,0007% 7T 2 7 #) A] IR A& =
B B QREITE 35,714,285 &
R EEO0.01 T Z & H °

RZZEENFREA=-+H  FREARBAK
% #8587,000,000% 70 2 FTH A IR IR = 4% -
EEUN QR E 1T A $£25,000,00008% & A& E
B0.01B T2 &% °

R-_ZTZE ) N\FHH_-+=-H " Global
Wealthy 5% #1 5 — 3L #7 89 Vision CenturyZ #5
T #4 2 44 830,000,000 7T * BEH AR
A]#77107,142,857 K SR E1E0.01 8 T 2

Betn e

R-_ZTZE ) N\FHH_-+=-H " Global
Wealthy % # 7K € 48 #8500,00078 7T 2 #
MAMRBRER B AQFETEH
1,785,714 &R EE0.01B L2 B’ °

RIE AT AR R 2 630 - ¥R (E 2 &
FR0.28 T E Z T R0.274F T -
RBEATRBRERE TEIT2RMHDEHE B
116,071,427 & D # % £118,613,137/%
Bm - BAEER T NAF=ANA
HER e AR ER 2 FT A B G RERT
o AHEPBEZHBHNARFTZZEZN
F=ZA+NBZAMH -

REMRSERBRE RZZTEEANF=A
=+—HB ¥FHUBERERZMAKERELR
% %8 /332,500,000 7T * 5 M M =) K (S
E 2 F#HVision Century S 4% ©

EHHS 2 DA EETDRRTEHEAE
OLRIR B 2 B IE 2 18 S TS R %
bt o FISEEE D BHERSHH REAR
= -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 # %= —

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

TEAE=A=+—AILER
30. WIRREE (B)

Notes: (continued)

The movement of the liability component of the convertible

G

FR-

(%)

MR RIEESE O 2 Z B0

notes for the year is set out below: T
HCSPL
New  New Vision 0Old Vision Note
Convertible Century Century (as defined in
Notes Notes Notes  note 35(l)) Total
HCSPLEE
AR ##vision EfVision (ERR
ZiE  CentuyZEiE  CenturyZHE  FIEE35()) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FET FET
Liability component RZZZLFMA—-R
at 1 April 2007 ZEBED - - 13,658 5,878 19,536
Nominal value of the HE-TT/\F=R=1—H
convertible notes issued IFEEBTIHRK
for the year ended E3 A S
31 March 2008 100,000 100,000 - - 200,000
Equity component e 3ol (15,812) (15,813) - - (31,625)
Direct transaction costs BEBHEEEERS
attributable to the AR
liability component (528) (316) - - (844)
Interest expense for the year AEEFEMAY 1,486 1,327 554 21 3,388
Conversion of convertible iR TENES
notes (41,975) (59,295) (14,212) (5899)  (121,381)
Liability component RZZZENE=A=+—H
at 31 March 2008 and k=TT /\5NA—-A
1 April 2008 2 EBBS 43,171 25,903 - - 69,074
Interest expense for the year AEENERAX 2,675 311 - - 2,986
Conversion of convertible Rz g
notes (15,283) (26214) - - (41,497)
Liability component RZZEANF=A=1+—H
at 31 March 2009 ZERHD 30,563 - - - 30,563
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

31. DEFERRED TAX 31.

iR 3E B 1R

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$7,482,000 (2008: HK$46,676,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
companies that have been loss-making for some time.

The Group and the Company had no unprovided
deferred tax at 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008.

AEBEBREBTELEZHEEBRBRA
7482,000/% 7T (ZFZ )\ : 46,676,000
BIT) - AT EREIRERESRSEE
NEZARRERB G F o NEE W&
RZEEEEREERBEEE - A%
EHETHOHGEE —BREB MW
BARESE-

RZBEENF=ZA=Z+—"HEKZ=ZF
ZENFZA=Z+—HBH AEBEARQ
A EA I RIRBEER A -

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. ®RA
Number of shares Amount
ROEE x|
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEREAE  ZEINF  ZEBRE TT/\HF
'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Fir TET FET
Authorised: EERA -
At beginning of the year and REMREFL
at end of the year, ordinary shares SR EE0.01 T
of HK$0.01 (ZZ2TN\F : 001
(2008: HK$0.01) each W)z E®E 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERRA
At beginning of the year RER 1,069,864 474,708 10,699 4,747
Issue of ordinary shares (note (a)) 4T L @A (FH5E(@)) 150,000 - 1,500 -
Issue of ordinary shares on exercise ~ {T{FEBIRIEMEITZ
of share options Lk (b))
(note (b)) 6,208 4,096 62 41
Conversion of convertible notes RRATHBRER
(note (c)) (FEE(c)) 169,643 591,060 1,696 5911
At end of the year REL 1,395,715 1,069,864 13,957 10,699
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32. BRA (&)

Notes: B 3

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital for the ARABRRAEARBE_TEZNF=A="+—

year ended 31 March 2009 are as follows: BIEFRz2E8FBEHMNMAT

(a) Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into on 26 (a) BER-_ZEZNF_A=-+HEIL
February 2009, the Company issued 150,000,000 ZBREWZE AR AIEER.075%
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.075 per shares to 7T %% 17150,000,0000% & I% M {80.01
independent investors. The issue price per share BIUZBRHD TELIEESE - BRE
represented the closing price of HK$0.075 per TEHERABRMR_ZEZTNAF_A
share on 26 February 2009 as quoted on the Stock T+ ANBEBIAER KT EFR
Exchange. The net proceeds of the placement of 0.075% 7T « BL & Z PR 1S SR IBFF LY
approximately HK$10,868,000 (equivalent to a net price 10,868,000/ 7t (10 & it & ik JH# (B 18
of approximately HK$0.0723 per share) was used as #90.0723870) EBIEAEE 2 —RE
general working capital of the Group. BEED -

(b) The subscription rights attaching to 6,208,000 share (b) 6,208,00017 g I AT F A8 2 RIS TE
options were exercised at the subscription price of 76 - REBEABSR0.188E L » B
HK$0.188 per share, resulting in the issue of 6,208,000 %%176,208,000% X E(E0.01/8 T2
shares of HK$0.01 each for a cash consideration of izt % KR4I K(E1,167,000% 7T
HK$1,167,000 and the transfer of HK$284,000 from LA K 1 284,0007% 7t B1 B AR #E (7 1 82
share option reserve to the share premium account. BERDRER -

(c) During the year, convertible notes of the Company in (0) F RN A% 4%E47,500,000/% 7T 2 2N
aggregate principal amount of HK$47,500,000 were N AR R IR O iR R E S 4%0.28
converted into 169,643,000 shares of HK$0.01 each BT 0 W A169,643,00008 &l E
of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.28 per BOOITB T ZARAIRG - ZFE %
share. These shares issued rank pari passu in all respects TERONFFEFEHEBEERNDER
with the existing shares. Details of the convertible notes FEE#zD - AEATRKRREZFIBH
are set out in note 30. R HIEE30 °

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33. IR HESHE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors,
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company's
shareholders, and any minority shareholders in
the Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 30 December 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. BRRRESTE (E)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 10%, in nominal amount, of the issued share
capital of the Company on the adoption date of the
Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
this Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any grant of share options to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period,
is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 30 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors or up
to the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

RIBZETE A RER h 2 B R T 3
TZBENEZTHEBERRAZT
ERHARRIEHITRAEELZ10%
(TFHEIREREE]) - FHHEFERER
BREF - WA EARIBZET FRK L
ZERE e NEF+—EABEA
REBEZEANETTRAERZASE
2B EREB RAN AR S HITRMD
Z1% - LBERBEMBLL ERZE
Pk - MRRKBRERNBRRARE L1 -

BPARQBIAEMNES TBTHAE
REERRABEE2AMBEALT
BREALSAKARBYIERITEES
SR o AN AR AR EERE K
BYIERTESIHBES 2 AAHBEA
TR FAERBERE - WA ERI2EA
HAR A AN A R AT B B 2 T AR 1D
20.1% & B EE (IR TR L A 8
T8 RERMBIARARD
I T & 5t &) 8 #85,000,0007% 7T+ Al
BB RN R NG ELHE -

ROBRE 2 ZZ A N EE B ER
0B AREMR - ARABZNREAR
BEXKVET - IRHBREZITES
HEFETXZEEMR (ABREE
RE)REIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

33. BIRAERTE ()

POLY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

PR B J 2 e AR 2 vl

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors in their absolute discretion, but in any
event shall not be less than the greatest of (i) the
closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of share options; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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E’\\\ZIKQEJE*W EAqu?‘JTZﬁ%HxV“

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The movement of share options under the Scheme

during the year is presented as follows:

Number of share options

m

BREHR Exercise
Name or At Granted Exercised At price
category 1 April during during 31 March Date of grant of  Exercise period of share
of participant 2008 the year the year 2009  share options of share options options
SEENE RZBENF RER RER RZFZNF BRE BRE BIE
R mA-H Rit 1% ZR=t-— R AE TEH T8
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$ per share
........... oo TR TR TR shen
Directors
S
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul - 10,000 - 10,000 30-04-2008 30-04-2008 to 0.188
il T\ 29-04-2010
MA=+A —ETNE
mA=1+HBZE
—B-FF
mA=+AhAB
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles - 3,000 - 3,000 30-04-2008 30-04-2008 to 0.188
SREEE —2EN\F 29-04-2010
MA=+AH —TTNF
mA=1+HZE
—T-%F
MA-tAH
Mr. Sue Ka Lok - 10,000 - 10,000 30-04-2008 30-04-2008 to 0.188
BRERE —TI)\F 29-04-2010
mA=+H —ETN\F
mMA=+EZE
—E-BF
mA=FAB
Mr. Yu Wai Man - 1,000 - 1,000 30-04-2008 30-04-2008 to 0.188
(note ) —TENF 29-04-2010
RIESUEE MA=+H —ETNE
k) MA=+HE
—T-%F
mA=+hAB
- 24,000 - 24,000
Employees - 33,280 (624) 32,656 30-04-2008  30-04-2008 to 0.188
| —2RN\F 29-4-2010
MA=+AH —TTNF
MA=1+HZE
—E-FF
MA-thH
Consultants - 6,840 (5,584) 1,256 30-04-2008 30-04-2008 to 0.188
) —ZEN\E 29-4-2010
MA=+H —ETN\F
MA=+HZE
—T-%F
mA=tAhB
- 64,120 (6,208) 57912
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CBRESE R

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

€)

(b)

©

(d)

(e

®

120

The share options granted to directors, employees and
consultants are vested upon granted.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustments in the case of capitalisation of profits or
reserve, rights or bonus issues, consolidation, subdivision
or reduction of the share capital or other changes in the
capital structure of the Company.

The closing price per share quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the trading date immediate before the date
on which the share options were granted was HK$0.185.

The weighted average closing price per share quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the trading date before the
dates on which the share options were exercised was
HK$0.28.

There were no share options cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2009.

The fair value of share options granted during the year
in the amount of approximately HK$2,931,000 was
recognised as expenses in the income statement of the
Company. The Company has used the Binomial Option
Pricing Model to value the share options granted during
the period. The following major assumptions were used
to calculate the fair values of share options:

3T

(@

(®)

©

(d)

(e

®

ETEE BEREMZBRENE
1 B SR
1350 2 R TS AT GRAR R

IREEALIR ~ B in & OF 3k i A HY
W A RE Z RAREA R M
B ABREZITEEATHE-

AR BEERELBRERASHIZR
Bt 22 BT 2 AR E%f?‘iz%o.ms/%s

rL
7\
H
JC °

BORITEBRERRII 25 B E
B2z B mE FHKRTRER
0.28/8 T °

BHE_ZTTNAF=ZA=1+"RALLFE
HATA) I BB A AR SR S B R AR

FARLDEBEREZAAEBEOR
2,931,000/ 7T * TR Az Wam &
BRASHAX - ARFDEMA-HEAH
#ETE IR R B R 2 B e
WEE - UTRAEBREAIAEE
B PR 2 £ B R

As at 30 April 2008
R-ZBZENFEOA=+H

Grant date share price
R B IS
Exercisable period
FT{EEf

Exercise price

TE(E

Expected volatility

T8 AR 0

Early exercise behaviour
REITRITR

Nature of the share options
Mgz 1t E

Risk-free interest rate

g L )
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE
33. BRAESTE (&)

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

®

®

Q)

M

(continued)

The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
The expected volatility was determined with reference
to the historical volatilities of the share prices of the
Company. The options holders will exercise their options
when the stock price rises to 126% of the exercise price
(i.e. HK$0.237) according to the historical early exercise
behaviour of share options granted by the Company
previously. The risk-free interest rate was determined
with reference to the yield of the Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Notes as extracted from Bloomberg.

On 7 May 2008 and 15 May 2008, 6,208,000 share
options in aggregate were exercised by certain staff
and consultants of the Group, at an exercise price of
HK$0.188 per share, which resulted in the issue of
6,208,000 shares of the Company, new share capital of
HK$62,080, share premium of HK$1,105,000 and the
reduction in the share option reserve of HK$284,000.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 1 April 2009,
a total of 8,000,000 share options outstanding were
lapsed due to the resignation of a staff.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 25 May
2009, 26 May 2009, 4 June 2009, 8 June 2009, 10
June 2009 and 8 July 2009, 33,912,000 share options
in aggregate were exercised by certain staff, directors
and consultants of the Group, at an exercise price of
HK$0.188 per share which resulted in the issue of
33,912,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 16,000,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately 1%
of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

Mr. Yu Wai Man resigned from his office as director of
the Company on 5 November 2008 but has remained
as an employee of the Group.

i

®

®

Q)

0)

0)

(%)
(%)

FTEEREALBEMREMN 2S8R

BEDEEREF ZHEMT - BR
BEEAEES TEHBBEZTRE
ek & - FEENF IR 2 E AR E) K
BUEZREBMERT - BEBEARQA L
MEHZERENAFRFITET
B EBRELEAEITEEZ126% (A
02378 7t) R BERERAE AKT
FEFEMERE - EBRRINEIZ2E
BloombergiZ it 2 HEEINEE S FIE 2
W EmMEE -

R-ZZENFRALEHEZZZTNEF
A A+HH - & 6,208,000 ¥ ik
HEEAEEE TRERERTE

THEER/TROISE T HEHETT

6,208,0000% X A & f% 15 - 62,0805
TOHTARAR ~ 1, 105 0008 TLIR 19 m B &
BE % 5 £8 Rk 1 284,000 7T ©

Bé,ﬁé;iafé: R—_ZEEZTNFEMWMA

CTHR—ZBEBIEBMT & H
8,000,000@ mMARITEZERED X
o

— ==

E~‘??ﬂ¢/\ﬂmﬁ
NENANEB ZZEZTALF XA+
BEZZEZENFELANE AEE
EFTREI EBEREMOES
#£323,912,0000 A& # - B R ITE
{?‘;J/%o.lsslﬁmv%@zﬂx A) B 1T
33,912,0000% & % E {H0.01 7T 2 &
NARIMRRG °

KA SRR E BB - BIEZET
&) - KA F) 4 16,000,00017 B f% 7 &
KITE - HERARARTRZBZBE#
TR #91%

REXELEER -_ZZTNF+—FA

HEHEARBEERS  HEDEER
REERS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

34. RESERVES

34. &

BB R

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years

(a) ~&E
FAEERATFEAERZFB

REBBBAINAY B EREZE

are presented in the consolidated statement of amEEHE -
changes in equity of the financial statements.
(b) Company (b) &AL
Convertible Share
Share  Contributed notes equity option  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TERZE
kit BARH BERG ERERE 2REE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tk T Tin Tk
At 1 April 2007 R-T5+ENA-H 46,235 3,085 6,035 305 (48,514) 7146
Issue of convertible notes BT ARER - - 31625 - - 31,625
Direct transaction costs ~~ WEAREFERB(
attributable to the EREERARA
equity component of
convertible notes - - (156) - - (156)
Conversion of the RBTARRE
convertible notes 139,130 - (25.217) - - 113,913
Share options exercised ~ REATEZ
during the year B 1206 - - (305) - 901
Loss for the year TEREE - - - - (5,142) (5,142)
At 31 March 2008 R-FENF=A=1-H
and 1 April 2008 R=2Z)\EMA-A 186,571 3,085 12,287 - (53,656) 148,287
Recognition of equity ﬁﬁm\w EnicE
setled share-based TR
payment expenses % - - - 2931 - 2931
Conversion of the RRTERRE
convertible notes 47096 - (7295) - - 39,801
Issue of shares Bk 9750 - - - - 9750
Transaction costs attributable ZTR 1A (S
to issue of shares REHA (382) - - - - (382)
Share options exercised  REA{THEZ
during the year IR 1,389 - - (284) - 1,105
Loss for the year TEREE - - - - (7394) (7394)
At 31 March 2009 RIZENFZA=T-0 244424 3,085 4,992 2,647 (61,050) 194,098
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35. TBHBRERH

35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following major non-cash
transactions during the years ended 31 March 2009
and 2008:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

©)

Pursuant to the terms of the convertible notes,
the initial conversion price was adjusted from
HK$0.28 per share to HK$0.274 per share and
the total number of shares to be issued under the
convertible notes was adjusted from 116,071,427
shares to 118,613,137 shares (note 30). Such
adjustment became effective on 6 March 2009.
All the other terms of the convertible notes remain
unchanged.

On 9 May 2008, 10 June 2008 and 20 June
2008, the New Subscribers transferred the
principal amount of HK$500,000, HK$17,000,000
and HK$4,500,000 respectively of the New
Convertible Notes to Global Wealthy.

On 19 May 2008, conversion of principal amount
of HK$10,000,000 of the New Convertible
Notes by the New Subscribers, which did not
result in any cash flows. The conversion resulted
in a decrease of the liability component of the
convertible note by HK$8,732,000.

On 20 May 2008, conversion of principal amount
of HK$7,000,000 of the New Convertible Notes by
the New Subscribers, which did not result in any
cash flows. The conversion resulted in a decrease
of the liability component of the convertible note
by HK$6,114,000.

On 22 May 2008, conversion of principal amount
of HK$500,000 of the New Convertible Notes by
Global Wealthy, which did not result in any cash
flows. The conversion resulted in a decrease of
the liability component of the convertible note by
HK$437,000.

REBEE_ZTENFR-_ZFTNEF=A
=t—HUEFERN AEEBETHU

TEEHRRERS
@ REABBEREZGR  MF

(®)

©

(d)

©)

BREE B FR0.288 T A%
EFR0.274E T - MB KA
BREEETET 2RO L
B Hm116,071,427RFAEE
118,613,1370% (M 3E30) - B #
FAEEBER-_ZTNF=ANEE
e AIHARR IR AT H AR

T8 o

R-EZNFRANLHE  —ZEZ
NERNAT+BEZZEZENF A
ZTH - FREASINEELRS
£8500,000/%8 7T * 17,000,000/ 7T
.4,500,000% 7T 2 #T By Al #a e 32
& F Global Wealthy °

R-ZZEZN\FREA+ILHE  #FR
B A XM & #%10,000,000
BTN RRERE  WEE
BAEMBEeRE - BELKRE
WA MR EE 2 & DR
8,732,000/ JT °

RZZBEZNFRA=-Z+H: #FR
fE A RIR7ZK € 587,000,000%8 7T 2
AT AR AR - W AR BT
REeERE - BEALBEHAHBE
B2 EB IR 26,114,000
5T e

R—ZEENFRA=-+=H"
Global Wealthy® # & & 58
500,000/ 7T Z #T H) AT R IR R 4% -
WESHAMNRERE -BHAN
BB A AR IR 2 & 2B 1 R
1437000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE-—TZThAhF=A=+—HLFE

35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

35. TBHFBERH (E)

124

®

®

Q)

0

On 22 May 2008, conversions of the remaining
balance of the second tranche of the New
Vision Century Notes in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 by Global Wealthy, which did not
result in any cash flows. The conversion resulted
in a decrease of the liability component of the
convertible note by HK$26,214,000.

During the year, the directors of Xin Procurement
do not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2008: HK$11,429,000). During the year ended
31 March 2008, dividend of HK$2,857,000 was
payable to the Group’'s minority shareholder,
which was settled through an amount due to the
minority shareholder.

On 17 January 2008, conversion of principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 of the New Vision
Century Notes were made by Global Wealthy,
which did not result in any cash flows. The
conversion resulted in a decrease of the
liability component of the convertible note by
HK$25,767,000.

On 18 September and 8 November 2007, two
conversions in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 of the New Convertible Notes
were made by the Subscribers and the New
Subscribers, which did not result in any cash
flows. The conversions resulted in a decrease of
the liability component of the convertible note by
HK$41,975,000.

On 18 September 2007, conversion of principal
amount of HK$40,000,000 of the New Vision
Century Notes were made by Vision Century,
which did not result in any cash flows. The
conversion resulted in a decrease of the
liability component of the convertible note by
HK$33,528,000.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #EHZEZE-ZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(continued) 35. TEFRERZ (F)

(k) In July 2007, two conversions in an aggregate &K RZ—ZZEEZEL£F £ H - Vision
principal amount of HK$17,000,000 of the Old CenturyR =2 BV E=F MK
Vision Century Note were made by Vision Century AR & $8%617,000,000 T 2
and three independent third parties, which did E fyVision CenturyZ= ik @ I &
not result in any cash flows. The conversions HEMReRE - AALKRSE
resulted in a decrease of the liability component B RRERZ2EH I DR LD
of the convertible note by HK$14,212,000 and 14,212,000 7T JA I H b & 1 BR
an increase in other payables and accruals by K% FE & SRIEIE AN57,000% JT -
HK$57,000, representing the unpaid interest SR AL BERVision Century
accrued to the portion of the Old Vision Century ZBRE D 2 EETARNAE -
Note converted.

(D On 17 April 2007, conversion of convertible note O RZZTZELFWWHA+LEH - HCSPL
of principal amount of HK$7,126,560 were made RN £ 587,126,5608 7T 2 7]
by HCSPL (the "HCSPL Note") , which did not RS Z g ([HCSPLEE ) » W&
result in any cash flows. The conversion resulted ByEMBEeRE - AL HKE
in a decrease of the liability component of the BoA iR R R 2 E R AR D R
convertible note by HK$5,899,000. 5,899,000/ JT °

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEME AT

On 28 November 2007, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Giant Gain Group
Limited, an independent third party, to dispose of (i)
its 100% equity interest in the entire issued share
capital of Hung Cheong Holdings Limited ("HCHL"),
the then wholly-owned subsidiary, and its subsidiaries;
and (ii) the benefit of and the interest in a loan
of approximately HK$28,500,000 owed by HCHL
to the Company, at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$25,508,000 (the “Disposal”). Details
of the transaction were summarised in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 November 2007 and the
Company's circular dated 12 December 2007. The
Disposal was completed on 30 November 2007.

RZZEZLF+—-—HAZ+/\H &R
A)E2Giant Gain Group Limited (/578
VEZHIAMNEERZ  LEEG
H 7 Hung Cheong Holdings Limited
(THCHLD) - RER—M2EHWE A A
LEMBAREIHEHITRAZEE
B A HEES ¢ (i) HCHL&E R AR alz
Bz Mz kA #£4928,500,000
78 7T - 481X (B £925,508,0007% 7T ([ H
EFH]) BBEXRSHZFREE MY
REBBAA-ZZEZTLF+—A=Z+NH
ZERRBRRAGEBEAE-_TTLE
TZATZBZARARBEEA - HE
EFHEERZZEZEELF+—A=+H
TR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B#EmEHIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE-—TZThAhF=A=+—HLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMWE QT (&)

2009 2008
—ZEEAF —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Net assets disposed of: EEHEEFE -
Investment properties (note 16) wEME (M 16) 19,532
Prepaid land lease payments e T A E5RIE
(note 17) (BFaE17) 33,035
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - Ze2 Kk
other receivables A FE W BR X 114
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHH 7
Accounts payable JFEATBR X (1,831)
Other payables and accruals H A B A BR 3R K FE S IE (23,077)
Bank borrowing IRITIER (8,474)
19,306
Translation reserve realised BRI N (1,656)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz W
(note 7) (BFaE7) 4,562
22,212
Satisfied by: TRFE
Cash Re 25,508
Less: Expenses directly A HEMEAR
attributable to the BERENG
disposal 53
of subsidiaries (3,296)
22,212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #EHZEZE-ZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

36. HEMB 2T (&)

37.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is

as follows:

MEENBARZASMREEEY
MAFEDIT

2009 2008
—EENF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Cash consideration HERE - 25,508
Cash and bank balances FrHERe &
disposed of WITHERR - @)
Expenses directly attributable HEHE R
to the disposal of subsidiaries BHEENRX - (3,296)
Net inflow of cash and HEMB AR
cash equivalents HRelReFED
in respect of the disposal MAFEE
of subsidiaries - 22,205

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

37. EEEM

At 31 March 2009, time deposits of HK$37,626,000
(2008: HK$48,256,000) were pledged to secure

banking facilities to the Group.

RZZEZTAFZA=Z+—H8 " EH
17 337,626,000 70 (Z T ZT )\ F -
48,256,000/87T) ERIFIEA AN EEE
BIRTRE ZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 8. KEMAHOZH
The Group leases certain of its office properties AEERBLKEHELZHHEEHET
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for the WMAEYHE - RZEWELE 2 HE
properties are negotiated for terms of one to two BMEME o
years.
At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future RZEZNF=A=+—0 x&EH
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable RIFE AR S THE AR T 51 F 8
operating leases falling due as follows: A2 RIRKIEE S HRIBEFEAT
2009 2008
—EEBNF —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Within one year —FRN 936 1,372
In the second to fifth years, E_EERF
inclusive (BHEEEMF) 486 1,413
1,422 2,785
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bi#sRFHIzE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39. BREAEALTRS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group also had the following related
party transactions for the years ended 31 March 2009
and 2008:

(a) During the year, the Company did not have any
deposits (2008: HK$50,000,000) in the securities
trading account opened with GT Capital for
securities investment purpose. During the year
ended 31 March 2009, securities investment
charges of HK$12,000 (2008: HK$485,000)
were paid to GT Capital and no interest income
(2008: HK$30,000) was received from the cash
deposited with GT Capital. At 31 March 2009,
the carrying amount of investments at fair value
through profit or loss maintained in the securities
trading account with GT Capital was nil (2008:
HK$5,340,000) and cash deposited with GT
Capital was nil (2008: HK$1,095,000) (note

24(a)).

BRATBHREREMEDARES
Hh REBRBE_ZTZAFR-ZF
ZENF=ZRAR=1T—HIEFETAAUT
BHEEALRS

(@) RAFEAN ARATE =S
M EFRSEFP U EEME
K (ZZEZ)\F : 50,000,000
TC)  MERESFIRERE - HEZ
TTNEFEZA=Z+—"HBHILEFE"
FEEREBH120008 T (=T
=T )\ : 485,000/ L) B X+
FTEEaR RIYEBEBREFERNS
B oz IR e W EE A F B U
A(ZZEZNF 1 30,0008 7T) °
R-ZZEZAF=ZA=+—H &
BECREFRSEFPTHEEZ
FERERBRALBAEIEKZK
EMEEEAZ AL (ZEZEN
F : 5,340,000/ L) © M7 A
EEeRcHEeARATAEL(ZE
=T N F 1 1,095,000% t) (B 5%
24(a)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #Z& B EHIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZE=-TZThF=A=+—HLFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39. BEEEBEALTRS ()

(b) REBZFTEETEEKEFH

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group:
2009 2008
—ZEENF —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Short term employee benefits 52 Ej{&E B &7 2,005 2,223
Post-employment benefits B HSk 12 12 ) 85 95
Equity settled share-based LARE 5 48 0 AR 19
payment expenses RN pdEa 1,097 -
Total compensation paid INTEEERE
to key management X8 #ENiaEE
personnel 3,187 2,318

Further details of directors’ emoluments are

FHESHEcE—THBEH
RERE M wERMEE10

included in note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.
40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS HEBH#®EBE
Save as disclosed in notes 33(g) and 33(h) to the B4R & BT B 2k B 5133 (g) R33(h) A
consolidated financial statements, significant events WEEIIN REEBRBREATIEK
took place subsequent to the balance sheet date were FIE
as follows:
(a) On 14 May 2009, the Company entered into (@ R=ZZEZAFHA+TIA AR

a placing agreement and a top-up subscription
agreement with Global Wealthy and a placing
agent, in which Global Wealthy agreed to place
and subscribe for an aggregate of 99,120,000 new
shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.102 per
share. Details of the transactions are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 14 May 2009.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #HZEZZTZThAF=A=+—HIFE

40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

40. FEHKRSBE (&)

(b) On 27 May 2009, two of the New Subscribers

©

converted the New Convertible Notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$11,000,000 at a
conversion price of HK$0.274, which resulted in the
issue of 40,145,985 shares of the Company.

On 12 June 2009 and 2 July 2009, the Group
entered into a framework agreement and second
framework agreement with Advanced Easy
Limited and Wonder Glory Limited in relation
to the potential acquisition of 51% and 49% of
the issued share capital of China Infrastructure
Industries Corporation (“CIIC") respectively. CIIC
and its subsidiaries is a leading provider of heavy
infrastructure construction equipment in the PRC
and provides a full range of design, manufacturing,
sales and leasing of infrastructure equipment along
with construction services and personnel to the
high-speed elevated railways, urban subways, and
cargo and container markets in the PRC. Further
details of the framework agreements are set out
in the Company's announcement dated 12 June
2009 and 2 July 2009.

41. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

b RZZEENLFHRA-TEH W
FARE ANRIRR(E0.27478 L 1
K & 48 %8 511,000,000 7T 2
FE AR SRR - B R A
1740,145,985% B 15 °

(00 RZZEZENFAA+ZBARERZZE
ZNFLAZH KAEBEHHIHE
Advanced Easy Limited&Wonder
Glory Limiteda] 37 1E 28 15 &% M &6
“MERME ABHFBAEE
WP ERETIEERRA
A (fach) 2 #&ITRAZ51%K
49% s o CICKR HKT B AR R
BEE s HEERRERMHRE
WemaEPBRREHKR  ®iE-
HENMEEAZRE LAPEH
SRERER T AR
HEMEREMATSRAMEIRSE
MAB - ERERBZEZFBH
RARRRZZEZAFAAATZ
BE—_ZEFTAFLA_BMER
/N (T

41. HEHZE B IEREK

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
17 July 2009.

EZeR_TTENAF LA+ EBHBLE
RAMBHRRALRETE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY T Fo &=

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLEE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ZBEAE —ZENF ZZRLFE ZETXE —TThHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FET FEL FAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  IEK=£%
Revenue WA 350,146 129,582 193,989 155,550 144,687
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BEiATETF, (BE)  (3,712) (9,486) 3,643 693 (5,807)
Taxation 1A (1,773) (655) (3,553) (3,172) (1,608)
Profit/(loss) for the BELEEL 2
year from continuing RERHF
operations (BB (5,485) (10,141) 90 (2,479) (7,415)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS T#& IS £
Loss for the year from BRI EER
discontinued operations ZARFEBE - - - (7.855) (1,717)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR REERR,
THE YEAR (B#E) (5,485) (10,141) 90 (10,334) (9,132)
Attributable to: AR ARG
Equity holders of the PN Fa
Company BAEA (4,907) (12,854) (7,904) (15,994) (12,047)
Minority interests DB R (578) 2,713 7,994 5,660 2,915
(5,485) (10,141) 90 (10,334) (9,132)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS BEE EERPHERFER
As at 31 March
R=A=t+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EBAE ZTINF ZTITEF ZTTRF TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FAT FHT TAT
Total assets BEE 275,269 290,849 166,931 118,007 139,472
Total liabilities Baf (47236) (113,678)  (128,178)  (110,524)  (134,027)
Minority interests DR EER (1) (608) (688) (9,607) (2,395)
EQUITY/(DEFICIT) EATREREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY bR
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (& #4t) 228,022 176,563 38,065 (2,124) 3,050

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F#k



	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY



